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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L67 I 20WB I 928PLC093924

DIRECTORS' REPORT

TO THB SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 9l't Annual
company together with the Audited Financiar Staternents of the
year ended 3l'r March, 2020, The Financial Statements have
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
central Government under Section 133 of the cornpanies Aot,
becorne applicable to the cornpany frorn the Fina,ciar year 20lg-20.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Reporl of your
Company for the
been prepared in
notified by the

2013 which have

Year ended
31.03.2020

(<)

Year ended
31.03.2019 *

(t)
Profit Before Taxation 3.14.79.200 I .21.85.571
Lglr , Provision for Current Tax (MAT) 0 r r.00.000
Profit After Taxatiorr 3,14,79,200 I , I 0,85,571
Add : Balance of Profit from Previolrs year 20,45,31,796 19,68,66.406
Profit available for appropriation 23,60,10,996 20.79,51.971
APPROPRIATIONS:
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (as per RBI Cridelines) 62,95,940 34,20,191
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 22,97,15,146 20,45,31,J96

23,60,10,996 20,79.51.911

* Restated as per Ind AS

DIVIDEND:

The Board does not recommend any dividend for tlie year ended 3 l't March, 2020 witl^t a view to
conserve resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Cornpany has only one class of shares - equity shares of par valLre {100/- each. Its authorised
slrare capital as on 31't March, 2020 was {35 Lac divided into 35,000 equity shares of {100/- each.
The paid-up equity capital of the Cornpany stood at {18 Lac as at 3l" March,2020. During the year
under review, the Company has not issued any shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board proposes to transfer <62.96 Lac to Reserve Fund pursuant to RBI Guidelines (for Non
Banking Financial Companies (NBFC), and the balance profit is retainecl in the profit and Loss
Account.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Total income durirrg the year under review arnounted to {341.05 Lac as against <358.61 Lac in the
preceding year. Profit before tax arnounted to <314.79 Lac as against <121.86 Lac in the preceding
year. Profit after tax stood at <314.19 Lac as against <l 10.86 Lac in the previous year.

The Company continues to rernain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve
Bank of India.
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No material changes and cotnmitments have occurred after the close of the year tilt the date of this
report, which affect the financial position of the Cornpany except for any efl'ect of Covid 19
Pandernic which cannot be assessed at this stage.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Cornpany does not have any associate.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The cornpany has not accepted any deposit fi.om the public during the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company registerecl under Chapter IIIB of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) provisions of Sectiorr 186 of the Cornpanies Act,20l3 are rrot
applicable to the Company.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Dr'rring the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly rnaterial contract / arrangernent /
transactions with related parlies, attracting the requirerrent of disclosure in this report as per
provisions of Seotion l88 of the Act except those disclosed in Notes to tlre Financial Statelreirts
forrning paft of this Annual Report. The transactions with the key rnanagerial personnel and
enterprise of which the cornpany is an associate are in the ordinary coLlrse oi business, are not ir.r
coltflict with the Cornpany's interests at large and are intended to fufther the Cornpany,s business
interests. Related Party Disclosures as required uucler the Listing Regulations is annexed to this
repoft.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Cornpany has in place adequate internal control procedures cornrnenslrrate with its size and
nature of its business. The Company has appointed internal auditors who review the interlal financial
control system' The Audit Cornmittee reviews the repofis of the internal auditors and ensures
implementation of their suggestions and improvement. During the year, no repoftable rnaterial
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The main identified risks at the Cornpany are Cornrnercial Risks, F-inancial Risks, Operational Risks
and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Risk Managernent is overseen by the Audit Comrnittee of the
Cornpany on a corrtirluous basis. The Audit Committee ensures that risks to the Company,s continued
existence as a going concern and to its development are identifiecl and addressed on tirnely basis.
Constitutioll of Risk Managetnent Cornmittee is not manclatory for the Company as per Regulation 2l
of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulaiions', 2o1i (,,Listing
Regulations).

DIRECTORS AND KBY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Irr accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Compa,y's Articles of
Associatiotr, Stnt. Raj Kamal Devi Bangur (DIN: 00403459) ancl Shri Sri Kishan Rathi (DIN:
00407211), Directors of the Company retire by rotation and being eligible offer thernselves for re-
appointment. In accordance with Regulation l7(lA) of the Listing regulations, conseut of members is
being sought for continttation of directorship of Shri Sri Kishan Rathi, who lras attained the age of 75
years, by way of special resolution.

Tlie Board recot.nmends their re-appointment / appointrnent ancl accordingly items/resolutions seeking
approval of the members for their re-appointrnents / appointments have been included in the Notice oi
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Cornpany along with their brief profile.
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Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat and Shri Tapas Kurnar Bhattacharya continue to be the Indepenclent
Directors of the Cornpany appointed for a period of five years fi'om their respective clates of
appointment. The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowleclge and experience in the
business carried on by the Company.

The Cornpany has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the
criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI g-isting Obligations
and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2015. The Company has pru"ti". oi conJucting
farniliarisation program for tlie independent directors.

Smt. Raj Karnal Devi Bangur, a Director of the Cornpany holds 4.03% of the paid-up capital of the
Company.

Shri Ashish Kedia was appointed Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Cornpany with effect
frorn I " February, 2020 in place of Mr. Pankaj Sureka who resigned w.e.f. I 6'r' August, 2019.

Shri Ghanshyarn Mohta is the Cornpany Secretary and also designated as Compliance Officer of the
Company.

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senior Managernent including the ernployees lrave
cornplied with their obligations as mentioned under Regulations 25 and 26 of ilte Listing Regulations.

BOARD EVALUATION

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and IndiviclLral Directors was conducted
after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the cornposition and
structure, effectiveness of processes, functioning etc.

The Independent Directors held a separate meeting, which reviewed the performalce of no1-
independent directors and the Board as a whole, took into account the views of non-executive
directors and to assess the quality, quantity and tirneliness of flow of infonnation between the
mallagement and the Board. The Indepertdent Directors were satisfied with the performalce of tlie
Board as a whole and tirneliness of flow of inforrnation.

Sorne of the key criteria for perfonnance evaluation are:-

P erformance evaluation of Directors ;

o Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
o Contribution at Board or Committee rneetings.
o Guidance / support to tnanagetnent outside the Board / Comntittee nteetings.

Performance evaluation of Board anel Comntittees;
o Board structure and composition
. Degree of fulfilhnent of key responsibilities
o Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to committees
r Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functiorino
o Board culture and dynamics
o Quality of relationsltip between Board and Management
o Efficacy of communication with external shareholders.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

M/s D. K. Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accor-rntants having Firrn Registration No.304138E, who are
Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Annual General Meeting
(AcM) held on l2tr' Septemb er, 2017, to hoid office ior a periocl of five consecutive years fi.om the
conclusiorr of 88'r' AGM of the Cornpany till the conclusion of 93'd AGM to be held in il-re year 2022.

The Statutory Auditors have confinned that they satisfy the eligibility / independence criteria required
under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Code of Ethics issued by tlie lrrstitute of Charlered
Accountants of India.



The report of the Auditors is self-explanatory arrd does not call for any furlher cornnents.

As required by the Listing Regulations, the auditors' ceffificate on corporate governance is annexed
to this report and forms part of tlte annual repofi. The report cloes not coniain any qualification,
reservatiotl or adverse remark requiring explanation or clarification from the Boarcl.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit forthe financial year'2019-20 has been conclucted by Shri MLrkesS Chaturvedi,
Practicing Company Secretary (PCS). The Secretarial Audit Repofi for the financial year ended 31.i
March, 2020 is annexed to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Reporl does not contain any
qualificatiorl, reservation or adverse remark requiring explanation or clarification from the Board.

Pursuant to clause I 0 of Parl C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, pCS Cerlificate is annexed to
the corporate Governance Reporl and fonns part of the anr"Lual report.

COST AUDIT

In terrns of provisiorrs of sectiotr 148 (l) of the Companies Act,20l3 cost audit as specified by the
Central Government is not applicable to the Company.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, tteither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial aLrditor has reported to
the audit cornrnittee, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,20l3, any instance of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the requirernent to mentiop
the same in this repoft is not applicable.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARI)

Six meetings of the Board and One meeting of Independent
intervening gap between the meetings of the Board was
Companies Act,2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Directors were held dLrring tlre year. The
within the period prescribed under the

The Audit Cornmittee comprises of two Independent Directors namely Shri Arun prakash Mallawat
(Clrairrnan) and Shri Tapas Kutnar Bhattacharyaand aNon Independent Director Shri Subhas Jajoo.
During the year, all the recotnlnendations rrrade by the Auclit Comrnittee were accepted by the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 117 of tl're Corlpanies Act,20l3, tlre Company has establisliecla
'VIGIL MECHANISM' for Directors and Employees to repofi concerns of unethical behavior, actual
or suspected, or violatiorr of Company's ethics policy and provicle safeguard against victimization of
employees.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee cornprises Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat (Chairrnan),
Shri Tapas Kurnar Bhattacharya and Shri Jagdish prasacl Mundra.

STAKEHOLDBRS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Cornpanies Act,20l3 and the Listing Regulations,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee is dLrly constitutecl by the Board colsisting of Directors Shri
Jagdish Prasad Mundra (Chairrnan), Shri S.K. Rathi and Shri Tapas Kunrar Biiattacharya for the
purpose of attending to investor grievances includirrg transfer/transrnission of shares of the Company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made there under have become applicable to the Company from the financial year
2017-18. The Board had constitLrted CSR Comrnittee for fonnulating and overseeing the execution of
the Company's CSR Policy. The CSR Committee comprises of two indepenclent directors and two
non-exectttive directors narnely Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat (Chairrnan), Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharya, Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Subhas Jajoo. This year the Company has
contributed for prornotion of education.

Tlre Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2019-20 with requisite details in the specified format as
required under Cornpanies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,20l4 is annexed hereto
and fonns part of this repoft.

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and fomrs part of this Report. The same is
also available on the website of the Company viz. http://www.western-india.co.inlpolicies/WICCL-
CSR&licy.pdf

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board in consultation with the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has framecl policy for
selection and appointrnertt of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for deterrnining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors whioh is annexed hereto and forms
part of this Report. Policy relatirrg to rernuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Repoft.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

TIre extract of Annual Return as provided uncler Sectior"rg2(3) of the Cornpanies Act,2013 is annexed
hereto in the prescribed form and forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant & rnaterial orders passed by the Regulators / Courls / Tribunals which would
irnpact the going coucern status of the company and its future operations.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuanttotherequirernentof Section 134(5)oftheCornpaniesAct,20l3,theBoardof Directorsof
the Cornpany hereby states and confirms that:

i) in preparation of the Annual Accourrts for the financial year 2019-20. the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanatiort relating to rnaterial departures, i?
any

ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently ancl made judgrnents
and estimates that are reasouable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ancl of the profit of the Cornpany for that
period;

iii) they have takerr proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordatrce with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Cornpany and for preventing and detecting fraud ancl other irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the Annual Accounts for the period ended 31'r March, 2020 on a going
concern basis,
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v)

vi)

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followecl by the Cornpany and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating properly;

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

None of the ernployees is drawing remuneration in excess of the lirnits set out in Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointrnent & Rernuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended to the
Companies Act,2013.

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(l) of the Companies (Appointrnent & Rlrnuneration of Managerial personnel)
Rules, 2014 as amended is annexed hereto forrni,g parl of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTTON AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Since the Company has no manufacturing activity, disclosures relating to Conservation of Elergy and
Techrrology Absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Cornpanies Act,2013 read with
Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo duri,g the year.

LISTING AGREEMENT & FEE

The Cornpatry's shares are presently listed at the Calcutta Stock Exchange Lirnited and the Company
has executed Listing Agreernent with the said stock exchange. The C6mpany has paid the urnrul
listing fee to the Stock Exchange upto the financiar year 2020-21.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of the provisions of Regulation I5 of SEBI (Listing Obligatiorrs and Disclosure
Requiremeuts) Regulations,20l5, Corporate Governance Repofi for fiscal 2020 is annexed hereto
and forms paft of this annual repoft. Tltere are no demat.urp"nr" / unclairned suspense account as on
the date of this Report as required under Schedule V Part F ol'the Listing Regulations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremerrts) Regulations,2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis"is set out hereunder and
forrns part of this Ar.rnual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

In tenns of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing obligations ancl Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015, inclusion of Business Responsibility RepJrt as part of the Arrnual
Report is not applicable to the Cornpany.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is cornpliant of requirenrent of Regulatio n 26(3)of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable to the Cornpariy by 

"frarnin 
Code of

Business Conduct and Ethics ("Code of Conduct'). The Code of Conauct is applicable to the
employees including directors of the Cornpany and is available ou the Cornpany,s *etsite. All
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employees including directors of the Cornpany have affinned cornpliance to the Code of Conduct as
on March 31,2020.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, nronitor and report trading by
insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations ,2015. This policy also incl,des
code of practices and procedttres for fair disclosure of unpublishecl price sensitive information, initial
and corrtinual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code orr a need-to-know basis. This policy
is available ol-l ollr website.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRBCTORS

All new independent directors inducted into the Board attencl an orientatiou prograrn. Fufther, at the
tirne of appointment of att independent director, the Cornpany issues a formal letter of appointment
outlining his/her role, futtctiotrs, duties and responsibilities.'fhe familiarisation prograrn is available
ou our website.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Sexual harasstnent of a woman at workplace is of serious concern to hurnanity on the whole. Keeping
in view the probleni of sexual harasstnent the company has frarned a policy to prevent incidents of
sexual harasstnent as required under Sexual Harassrnent of Wornen at Woriplace (preventiorr,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act,20l3 and rules framecl there under. However, constitution of Internal
Cornmittee as required under the Act is not applicable to the Company since the company has less
than 10 employees. Moreover, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassrnent was filed by any wor1al
duringthe financialyear under repoft, hence no discloiures are applicable. This policy is available on
our website.
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POLICIES

In addition to its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by the
Company and uploaded on its website are as under:u or.l lts webstte are as

Name of the Policy Web link
Policy for selection and
appointment of Directors,
Senior Managernent
including criteria for
detennining qualifi cations,
positive attributes and
independence of the
directors

http://www.western-india.co. in/policies/WICC L-
Appointment Policv.odf

Archival Policy for
Website content

http://www.western-india.co. inlpol icies/WICC L-Archival_pol ic.v.,odf

Policy on Determination of
Materiality

http : //www. we ste rn - i nd i a. co. i n/po I i c i es/W I C C L-
Determi nation_of Material it_v.pdf

Familiarisation Program
for Independent Directors

http://www.western-ind ia.co. i n/ool ic ies/W I CC L
Familiarisation Prosram.odf

Insider Trading Code
Insider Trading_Code.pdf

Policy for Detennining
Material Subsidiary

http://www.western-ind ia.co. i n/pol icies/W ICC L-
Materia l%20Su bs id iar-v. pd f

Related Party Transactions
Policy Related_Partlz:Tran sactions Pol icy. pdf
Policy relating to
remuneration for the
directors, key managerial
personnel and other
employees

Remuneration_Pol ic)r.pdf

Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy Whistle Blower_Policy.pdf
Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider
Trading

http://www.western-
india.co.in/policies/20170529 wlccl prohibition of Insider Tradi
lg.pdf

Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy

http://www.western-india.co. in/policies/WICC L-CS R_pol icy.,pdf

Prohibition of Sexual
Harassrnent Policy Prohibition olSexual_ Harassment Policy.pdf

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the support the Company continues to receive
from its Bankers and Shareholders and acknowledge the valuable contributio, fro, the employees of
the Cornpany.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 22"d July,2020

(T.K. BHATTACHARYA) (J.p. MUNDRA)
DIN:0071 1665 DIN:00630475

Directors
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Annexure to the Director,s Report

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations ancl Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 in compliance with

Ind -AS

Details of transactions with related parties:

For and on behalfofthe Board
Place: Kolkata
Dated: 22"d July,2020

(T.K. BHATTACHARYA) (J.p. MUNDRA)
DIN:0071 1665 DIN:00630475
Director Director

Nature of
Transactions

Name of related party Description of
Relationshin

Amount
R)

Payment of
Remuneration

Mr. Ashish Kedia Key Managernent Personnel
(liom I'r l.'eb 2020)

2,16,2241-

Payment of
Rernuneration

Mr. Pankaj Sureka Key Management Personnel
(upto I 61r' n ug 20 I 9)

802,3541-

Payment of
Rernuneration

Mr. Ghanshyarn Mohta Key Management Personnel 1,80,000/-

Payment of Rent Shree Capital Services Ltd. Associate of the related
party

11,328
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Annexure to the Directors, Report
Annual Repoft on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR Activities

I A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undeftaken

The Cornpany airns to focus on environment
preservation, spreading education and
supporling needy people of the society for their
overall Lrpliftrnent. Though its social activities
are to focus printarily on areas surroLrnding its
operations, which may include people I
programs which may not be so related strictly
cotrsidering overall upliftrnent objectives.
However, in the third year of irnplementatiorr
the Company has ernphasised mainly on
promotion of edLrcation by contributing to
"Narain Das Bangur Charitable Trust" which is
engaged in charitable activities including
promotion of edr-rcation.

2 The Cornposition of the CSR Conrrnittee CSR Comrnittee comprises of two Independent
Directors and two Non-Executive Directors as
under:
l. Shri A.P. Mallawat - Chairrnan
2. Shri T.K. Bhattacharya - Member
3. Shri J.P. MLrndra - Member
4. Shri Subhas Jaloo - Member

J Average net profit of the company for the last
three financial years

7520.22 L.ac

4 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the
amount as in item 3 above)

The prescribed CSR Expenditure requirement
for the FY 2019-20 is {10.41 Lac. The arnourrt
allocated i.e. {l 0.45 Lac is higlrer tltan 2Yo of
the average net profit of the Company for the
preceding three financial years.

5 pg!4llq of CSR spent during the financial year
a Total arnount to be spent for the financial year { I 0.41 Lac
b Amount unspent, if any NIL
c Manner in which the amount spent during the

financial year
As annexed

6 In case the Company has failed to spend the two
perceut of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any parl thereof, the Corrpany
shall provide the reasons for not spending the
arnount in its Directors' Report

Not Applicable

7 A responsibility statement of the CSR
Cornmittee that the implementation ancl
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in cornpliance with
CSR objectives and Policy of the Cornpanv

The CSR Cornrnittee hereby confirrns that the
irnplernentation arrd ntorritoring of CSR policy
is in compliance witlr CSR objectives and
Policy of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date'.22"d July,2020

For Western India Cornrnercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chainlan of

CSR Comrnittee
DIN: 08209376
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Annexure to CSR Report (Point 5(c) of the CSR Report)

CSR
Project or
activity
identified

(1)

Sector in
which the
project is
covered

(2)

Projects or
programs
l. Local
Area or
other
2. Specify
the State
and district
where
projects or
programs
was
undeftaken

(3)

Arnount
outlay(budget)
Project or
prograrn wise

G)

Amount
spent on the
projects or
prograrns
sub-heads:
L Direct
expenditure
on projects
of programs
2.Overheads

(s)

Curnulative
expenditure
upto the
reporting
period

(6)

Arnount
spent:
Direct or
through
Implernenting
Agency

(7)

Initiative
to promote
educatiorr

Promotion
of
Education

Area:
PAN India

{10.45 Lac T10.45 Lac

Direct
Expenditure
oll programs

{ I 0.45 Lac Through
hnplernenting
Agency i.e.
Narairr Das
Bangur
Charitable
Trust

Place: Kolkata
Date'.22"d July,2020

For Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chairman of

CSR Committee
DIN: 08209376
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03,2020

[Pursuant to Section 201(1) oJ'the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 o/'the Companies( Appointment and

Rentuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 21A oJ SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirentents) Regulations, 20 I 5, as amendedl

To,

The Members,

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITBD
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adhere,ce
to good corporate practices by WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED (herei,after
called the cornpany). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a rnanner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing niy opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the wESTERN INDIA coMMERCIAL coMpANy LIMITED, books, papers,
minute books, forms and returlls filed and other records maintained by the cornpany and also the inforrnatio,
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized r:epresentaiives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in rny opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2020 generally complied witli the statutory piovisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company lias proper Board-processes and cornpliance-rnechanism in place to the extent, in the
lnanner and subject to the repofting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forrns and retunts filecl and other records maintained by
WESTERN INDIA COMME,RCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, ("the Company") for the financial year ended
on 3l .03.2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The cornpanies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there-under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') ancl the rules made there-under,

(iii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws frarned there-uncler;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules ancl regulatiorrs made there-under to the

extent of Foreign Direct lttvestment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Cornmercial

Borrowings - Not Applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and GLridelines prescribed under the SecLrrities and Exchalge Board of l,dia
Act, 1992 (' SEBI Act' ):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sl-rares and Takeovers)
Regulations , 201 1;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,20l5;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations ,2018;'
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Ernployee Stock Option Scheme and Ernployee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1gg9- Not Applicable
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents)

Regulations ,2015
f) The Securities and Exchauge Board of India ( Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act ancl dealing with client;
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board
Applicable;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board
Applicable;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Ernployee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
Not Applicable
The Securities and Excltange Board of India (lssLre and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulatior-rs,
2008; Not Applicable
The Securities and Exchatrge Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations ,2013; Not Applicable
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
1996 and2018

(vi) The other laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which are specifically
applicable to the Company based on their sector/industry are

a) West Bengal State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments Act,1979
b) West Bengal Shop and Establishment Act,l963

c) Reserve Bank of India Act,1934

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors
& Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive- Diiector but they have Manager, CFO and
CS. The change in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at 

_least seven days in advance, and a system exists ior sJeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meani,igfrl participat[n at the
meeting.

AII decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Board of Directors

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicabie laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) RegLrlations, 2009.Not

of India (Buyback of SecLrrities) Regulations, 2018 - Not

i)

k)

l)

Place: Kolkata
Date:30.06.2020

Signature:
Name of Company Secretary in practice - Mukesh Chaturvedi
ACS No.: 10213
CP No.: 3390
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policv (CSR policy)

Western India Cornrnercial Company Lirnited (WICCL) believes that for its operatio, and growtlr to
be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs. Its progress is thLrs underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social upliftrnent etc. WICCL believes in making social
developrnent as an integral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful chlnge in
the lives of people. WICCL considers social responsibility as a voluntiry act ratherthan an additional
activity mandated by statute.

WICCL has in line with / in conforrnity with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR policy.
WICCL will maintain that allthe activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
yolicy and that tlie projects and activities that will be undertaken arsin full cornpliance with Schedule
VII of the Companies Act,2013.

The contents of WICCL's CSR Policy are given below:-

1. Vision, Objective and Scope of the policy

WICCL Progratnmes will focus on suppofting needy people of the society for their overall
upliftrnent. Though its social activities will be focusing priniarily o,", ur"u. surrounding its
operations, it rnay include people / programs which rnay not be so related strictly considering
overalI upliftrnent objectives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

WICCL is committed to spend 2o/o of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as
defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Commiffee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

rdentification of Projects and Modalities of project Execution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines formulated or
laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VIi to the Companies Act,
2013.

Organisational Mechanism

WICCL will seek assistance of outside agencies and/or collaborative partnerships may be
formed with like-minded stakeholders in order to widen the Company,s reach in
implementing its CSR policy.

Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initiatives
and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the company.

Budget - CSR Corpus

WICCL will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for
social initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities *itt U" made on suitable and/or
progressive basis.

4.

5.

6.

7.
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8.

9.

Performance Management

WICCL will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual perforrnance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Cornpany shall review the perforinance.

Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Cornpany's engagement in this dornain shall be disseminated on its website and througlr
its Annual Reports etc.

10. Management Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Mauagernent and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy of
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity ancl cornpassion, characterised
by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the cornerstone of our
CSR Policy.

11. Review of Policy

CSR Cornrnittee of the Board of Western India Commercial Company Limited will
review the policy from time to time basecl on the changing neecls and aspirations of tlie target
beneficiaries ard ,ake suitable rnoclifications as may be necessary.

Place: Kolkata

Date:22"'t July,2020

For Westenr India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chairrnan of

CSR Cornrnittee
DIN: 08209376
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Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes antl independence of the directors

Introduction

Western India Cornmercial Co. Ltd. (WICCL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates
a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to irnprove the quality of
governance.

WICCL recognizes the irnportance of independent directors in achieving the effectiveness of the
Board. WICCL aims to have an optitnum combination of Non-Executive and Indepenclent Directors.

Scone and Exclusion

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
identiSzing persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the irrdependence of
Directors, in case of their appointrnent as independent directors of the Contpany.

Terms and References

In this Policy, the terrns shall have the following meanings:

"Directoro' means a director appointed to the Board of the company.

"Nomination & Remuneration Committee" lreans the cornrnittee constituted by WICCL,s Board
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the companies Act,20l3.

"Independent Director" Ineans a director referred to in Sectiort 149(6) of the Cornpanies Act, 2013.

Policy

Oual i-fic ations and Criteria
The Nornination & Rernuneration Comrnittee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
appropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as a whole and its individual
members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant
for the Company's business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board mernbers, the Comrnittee may take into account
factors such as:

o General understanding of the Cornpauy's business dynarnics and social perspective;
o Educational and professional backgroLrnd;
o Standing in the profession;
o Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
o Willingness to devote sufficient tirne and zeal in carrying out their duties and responsibilities

effectively.

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirernents:

o Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);
o Slrall not be disqualified under the Companies Act,2013;
o Shall give his written conserlt in prescribed fonn to act as a Director;

' Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee
Member, the Committee Meetings;

o Shall abide by the ethics policy establislied by the Company for Director.s, ernployees and Senior
Managernent Personnel;
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t Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Cornpany or Cornpanies or bodies corporate, firms,
or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first rneeting of the Board irr
every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures ilready rnade;

o Such other requiretnents as may be prescribed, from time to tirne, uuder the Cornpanies Act, 2013
and other relevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables
the success of tlie Cornpany's business.

Criteria o-f Independence
The Comrnittee shall assess the independence of Directors at the tirne of appointrnent I re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board slrall re-assess determinatio, of
independence when alty new interests or relationships are disclosed by the Director.

To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the cornpanies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the "Code for lndepenclent Directors" as specified ip
Sclredule IV to the Cornpanies Act,2013.

Other directorships / committee mentberships
The Board rnembers are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to contribute to
effective Board perfortnance. The Comrnittee shall take into acoount the nature of, and the time
involved in a Director's service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual
Director and rnaking its recornmendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director in more tltan20 companies of which not rnore than l0 shall be
Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an lndependent Director in more ll'rat't 7 Listed Companies and not more
than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-tirne Director in any Listed Company.

A Director shall not be a rnember in more than l0 committees or act as Chaiman of more than
5 committees across all companies in whicrr he holds clirectorship.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake
holders' Relationship Cornmittee of all Public Lirnited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be
included and all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and
companies under Section 8 of the comparries Act,20l3 shall be excluded

Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees

Introduction

Western India Cornmercial Co. Ltd. (WICCL) recognizes the importance of aligning the business
objectives with specific and tneasurable individual objectives. The Company has tlirefore fonnulated
the remuneration policy for its directors, key managirial personnel ancl otier ernployees keepilg in
view the following objectives:

o Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate talent to run the Cornpany successfully.

o Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the perfonnance
benchmarks.

o Ensuring that remutleration involves a balance between fixed ancl incer.rtive pay reflecting shoft
and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the cornpany and its goals.
However, there is no incentive pay at present.

ig



Scope and Exclusion
This Policy sets or.rt the guiding principles for the
recornrnending to the Board the remuneration of the
employees of the Cornpany.

Nornination & Remuneration Committee fbr
directors, key managerial personnel and other

Terms and References
In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

"Director" means a director appointed to the Board of the cornpany.

o'Key Managerial Personnel,, means
i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a Whole-

tirne Director;
ii) the Cornpany Secretary;
iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the companies Act, 2013

"Nomination & Remuneration Committeeo' lneans the comrnittee constitlrted by WICCL,s Boarcl
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the cornpanies Act,2013.

Policy
The Board, on the recommetrdation of theNomination & Remuneration Cornmittee, shall review and
approve the rernuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Cornpany
within the overall lirnits subject to approval by the shareholders of t6e Company where requirei.
Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the rneetings of the Board and
the Cornmittees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled
to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurrecl for attending Board and
Committee tneetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their dLrties as Directors.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nornination & Rernuneration Cornrnittee, shall also review
and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Ernployees of the
Company. Ernployee individual retnuueration shall be deterrnined accorcling to their qualifications,
and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be based on various factors
such as job profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remutteration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial personnel and other
Ernployees shall mainly include the following:

Basic Pay
Perquisites and Allowances
Retiral benefits

a)
b)
c)

rg



Forrn No.MCT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 3l'1 March, 2020
IPursuantto Section 92(3) of the comparries Act,2013 and rule r2(l) of the

Cornpanies (Management and Adrninistration) RLrles, 20 I 4]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN L67 I 20WB 1 928PLC093924
ii) Registration Date 13"' August, 

.1928

iii) Name of the Company Western India Commercial
Company Lirnited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Cornpany PLrblic Cornpany /
Limited by Shares

v) Address of the Registered Office and corrtact details 2l , Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
Tel: +9133 2230 9601 (3 Lines),

+9133 2243 7725
Fax: +9133 2213 1650

vi) Whether listed Company Yes
vii) Narre, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent, if any
Maheshwari Datarnatics Pvt. Ltcl.
23, R.N. Mukherjee, 5tr'Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001
Tel: +9 133 2243 5029, 2248 2248
Ernail : mdplclc@yahoo.conr

u PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE
COMPANY
All the business activities contribLrting l0% o. ,
Name and Description of main
products / services

NIC Code of
the products /

services

o/o oftotal tuntover
of the Cornpany

NBFC Activity 991 1 100%
III PARTICULARS OF' HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY

AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
None

IV SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share
Breakup as percentage of Total Equitv)

I Category-wise Shareholding As per Attachrnent A
ii) Shareholding of Promoters As per Attachrnent B
iii) Change in Prornoters' Shareholding As per Attachrnent C
iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Sharehold",s ("ther

than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs)

As per Attachrnent D

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key n,Iun.ogs.iul
Personnel

As per Attachrnent E. However,
Key Managerial Personnel do not
hold any share in the Comoanv.v INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including intere-*
or-rtstanding / accrued but not due for payment

NIL

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to MD/WTD and/or M lnager As per Attachment F
B Remuneration to other Directors As per Attachrnent G
C Remuneration to Key Managerial pe.*n,r"l oth"r.tl"*

MD/WTD/Manager
Included in remuneration of
Manager in Attachment F. However
remuneration of Company
Secretary is provided in Attachment
H.

VII PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT i CON/POUNDING
OF OFFENCES

None
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Attachment C

iii)CharrBe in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify f there is no cltange)

Shareholding at the
beginni ng 10L/ Apr I 19)lend of

the year 131,/Mar1201

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year f}tlAprllg
ro 3LlMarl20)

Sl No Name No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company PAN

L NBI INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO LTD AAACN3868N
0t104/2019 21"05 1_t.6944
3t103/2020 2105 1"L.6944 2105 11.6944

2 MANNAKRISHNA INVESTMENTS PVT LTD AACCM2323H
01./04/2019 50 0.2778
31/03/2020 50 0.2778 50 0.2778

3 ASISH CREATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AADCA3SO5D
or/04/201s 3555 19.7500
31,/03/2020 3555 19.7500 3555 19.7s00

4 SHREE CAPITAL SERVICES LTD AAGCS5082D
01,l04l2O7s 4425 24.5833
3110312020 4425 24.s833 4425 24.5833

5 RAJKAMAL DEVI BANGUR ADAPB215OP
0t/04/2079 725 4.O278
33,/03/2020 725 4.0278 725 4.0278

6 HARIMOHAN BANGUR ADJPBO9S2E
0t/04/201s 2000 tt.1,tLt
30/06/2079 - Transfer s00 2.7778 2500 13.8889
3110312020 2500 13.8889 2500 13.8889

7 BENU GOPAL BANGUR ADRPB5687N
01,104/2019 500 2.7778
05/0412019 - Transfer -500 2.7778 0 0.0000
31/03/2020 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

8 PRASHANT BANGUR AHAPB4776F
01./04/2019 130 0.7222

1./03/2020 130 o.7222 130 0.7222
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Attachment D

iv) Sha reholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the
begi n n i n g l)t / Apr / 19)/ end

of the year l3l/Marl20l

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year t)UAprltg
Io 3t/Mar/201

Sl No Name
No. of
sh a res

% of total
shares of the
com pa ny No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
com pa ny PAN

t TANUSHREE LOGISTICS PRIVATE LI M ITED

2475 13.750
AACCT4837B

0t/04120t9
3t/03/2020 2475 13.7s00 2475 13.7500

2 THE ORIENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AAACTO62TR
o1/04/2019 2000 1"1-.ttt1.
3110312020 2000 Tt.t|lt 2000 1"1.L11t

3 BAGLA ENGINEERING CO PVT LTD

ot/04/2ots 35 0.L944
31103/2020 35 0.1_944 35 0.1944
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Attachment E

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial personnel

Shareholding at the
begi n ni ng 101, / Apr / 19) / end

of the year l3llMarl20)

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year [0L/Aprl19

to 3t/Marl20l

Sl No Name
No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
companv

No. of
sh ares

% of total
shares ofthe
companv PAN

t RAJKAMAL DEVI BANGUR ADAP82l5OP
01/04/2079 725 4.0278
3t/03/2020 725 4,0278 725 4.0278

2-6



Attachment F
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration of MD/WTD and/or M also CFO

Attachment G
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B. Remuneration to other Directors

*TotalremutrerationtoManagi,8Di.ectogtotal
ofA and B)

Particulars of Remuneration

a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section I 7(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Incorne Tax Act, 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
l7(3) of the Income Tax Act, l96l

Ceiling as per the Act <16.31 Lac (being 5%o of the net profits of the
Company caloulated as per Section 198 of the

ies Act, 2013

o Fee for
attending board
/ committee

o Commission

o Fee for
attending board
/ comrnittee

o Commission

<35.89Lac(being11o/ooftIrenetprofitsoftlre@
per Section I 98 of the compan ies Act, 201 3 subject to Schedule v of the

2+

st.
No.

Ashish
Kedia

lfronr l'r lieh 2()71)l

Pankaj
Sureka

l,,nt^l (th A,,r llll q\

Total
Amount (Q

1 Gross Salarv 2.16.224 8,02,354 10.18.s78

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- as oZ of profit
- others

5 Others

TOTAL (A) 2.16.224 8,02.354 10,18"579

sl.
No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Raj
Karnal
Devi

Bangur

.lagdish
Prasad

Mundra

Subhas
Jajoo

Sri
Kishan
Rathi

A. P.

Mallawat
T.K.

Bhatta
charya

Total
Arnount

(<)

1 Independent
Directors

25,800 28,200 54,000

r Others
TOTAL (1) 25,900 28.200 54,000

2 Other Non-
Executive
Directors

15,000 2 r,000 23,400 15,000 74,400

o Others
TOTAL (2) 15.000 21.000 23.400 rs.000 74.400
roTAL (B):
(1)+(2)

15,000 21,000 23,400 15,000 25,800 29,200 128,400

Total
Remuneration

11,46,979,

Overall ceiling as
per Act



Attachment H
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

C. Remunerat ion to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/wrD/Malraser i.e. com
Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Ghanshyam

Mohta
R)

Total Amount

(<)
I Cross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained
l7(l) of the Income Tax Act. l96l

in section 1,80,000 1,80,000

b) Value of perquisites u/s l1(2) of the Incorne
Tax Act, 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section l7(3) of
the Income Tax Act, l96l

2 Stock Option
J Sweat Equity
4 Commission

- as % ofprofit
others

5 Others

TOTAL 1,80,000 1,90,000
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Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(L2) of
the Act read with Rute 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules,2014

i) Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
Company for the financial year

employees of the

Not Applicable, as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board /
Cornmittee meetings.

ii) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial officer, company secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year
Not Applicable - since the present Manager and Chief Financial Officer was appointecl effective
frorn 01 " February, 2020.

iii) Percentage increase in the metlian remuneration of employees in the financial year
Not Applicable.

iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
2 (Two)

v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 

-wiih 
tne percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial ."-rn""aiio,
Not applicable.

vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paitl is as per the Remuneration policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

Lq



CORPORATE GOVBRNANCE REPORT

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligatiotts and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing ReguLtions), and
the report contains the details of Corporate Goventance systerns and processes at Western India
CommercialCo. ltd.

1. Company's Philosophy On Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance encontpasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company,s
affairs are being rranaged ilt a rnanuer which ensures accountability, transparency ald fairless i1 all
transactions in the widest sense. Our Corporate Governance philosophy is aimed at creating and
nttrturing a valuable bond with stakeholders to maxirnize stakeholclers' value. Good governance
practices stem from the dynarnic culture and positive mindset of the organisatiop. We are committed
to meet the aspirations of all or.tr stakeholders. The Cornpany is fLrlly committed to the principles of
transparency, integrity and accountability in all spheres of its operations and has been piacticing the
principles of good corporate govenrance over the years. In keeping with this conimitrnent, the
Cornpany has been upholding fair and ethical business and corporate praotices and transpar.elcy in its
dealings and continuously endeavors to review, strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedirres so
as to bring in transparency and efficiency in its varior-rs business segrnents.

We believe, Corporate Governarrce is not jLrst a destination, but a journey to constantly irnprove
sustainable value creation. It is att upward-moving target that we coliectively strive towards
achieving' Our multiple initiatives towards maintaining the highest standarcls oi guu".nu,rce are
detailed in this Report.

2. Board of Directors

It is our belief that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-
term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of governauce. The Board's actions apd
decisions are aligned with the Company's best interests. The Boarci is entrusted with the ultirnate
responsibility of the lnallagement, direction and perforrnauce of the Cornpany. Tfie Board is
committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Comparry's value creation. As its prirnary role is
fiduciary in rrature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independlnt view
to the Company's lnanagerneltt while discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that tfie
managentent adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.

Composition

The Board comprises of Independent and Non- Independent Directors as required under the
Compatries Act,20l3 ('the Act') and Listing Regulations. The strength of the Board as on 3l't March,
2020 was six mernbers all of whom are Norr- Executive Directors. Out of thern two are Independent
Director and four are Notr- Independent Directors of which one is a Woman Director.

The Independent Directors ot.t the Board are competent and respectecl prof'essionals frorr their
respective fields and have vast experience in general corporate lxanagelnent, finance and other allied
fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the Company. All Independent Directors make
annual disclosure of their Independence to the Comparry. The day to day rnanagement of the
Company is conducted by the Martager subject to the supervisior.r, clirection and control of the Boarcl
of Directors. The Independent Directors have made disclosures to the Board confinning that there are
no rnaterial financial arld/or commercial transactions between them ancl their relatives and the
company which could have potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion of
the Board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specifiecl in the Listing Regulations ancl
Companies Act,2013 and are independent of the managernent.

3o



Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships

Notes:
N1- Shri A. P. Mallawat was appointed on 301r'April, 2019
(*) includes directorships held in public lirnited Companies only. (Directorships held in private

Companies, Foreign Companies and Cornpanies registered under Section 8 of the
Companies Act,2013 are excluded)

(@) includes only positions held in Audit Cornmittee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of
the Board of Directors as per Regulatior"r26 of the Listing RegLrlations.

30tr'April.20l9
30'r'May.2019
l4'r' August. 2019
I 4'l' Septemb er,2019
23'd Novernber, 2019
3 l't January ,2020

i Name of the Director j Name of the Listed Entity i categot ;aDiili;ilhip*- iii"j

i J.P. Mundra i N. B. I. Industrial Finance Co. i Non-Eiiiiitiu" Non-ina;d;A;;i-l
i i Ltd. i oirector i

1-_t1eJ [.qmql Devr tsangur i NIL I Ntt_ i

l-f.KlBll;tt*d'yr----- l- N. rt: i. fia;st*rr Filii;" 4;. ] Nor-Ei";r;i;;:i;a;p;raa;i*-]
i i Ltd. i nirector i

Six Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2019-20 on the following dates:

None of the Non-executive Directors hold any shares or convertible instrurnents in the Company.

None of the directors of the Cornpany are related inter-se.

3l

Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attenclarrce at Board Meetings and at the previous
Annual General Meetirrg, trumber of other Directorships and Board-Committee rnernbershipi h.ld ut
-",:l.l.liVterq!t?.0?_9,s:getye19.-el_oy.,.

i s. i Name of the Director i Aat*dil; i Ait*,r;"" i Nr.-rf ;;h; -i N;;ili;f;;ii;; li."i if,,i*,Ul i"xti;""i''*'l:i'n'o'i "*;$-,io;;b',*" j

iiiliiA.iA.i

ii^riiiiii itat)gur i r i i

ilf$u9[ffJd"eo- i o j ves i r i --i i i

6 Yes I I
5 A. P. Mallawat-N1 5 Yes I I

6 T.K. Bhattacharva 6 Yes I 2



Skills/Expertise/Competence of the Board of Directors

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skill, competence and experlise that
allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its committees.
The following skills / expertise / cornpetencies have been identifled for the eff.ective functioning of
the Cornpany and are currently available with the Board:

L"ia"'siip ;a; a;ii;ii;ili fiil oiii,;i,u[.i"",ii ;ririe fi;i;,rc; ailaifi;i Leadership of a fina,ciat firm oi,iiirrg.r;,rf;f iG fii;'rc. filaifii I

i of an enterprise, resulting in proficiency i, fina,cial rnanagernent, i

i capital allocation and financial reporting process or experience in i

I] elti*!r-:up9-ty!q!us yer!oL'.1-u!gl!-9:lt - --_________---____j

i Ability to think strategically, idenrily and as.rJ rifu.git j

i oppomunities & threats and contribute towards developing effective j

i {t-?legr--"-q iltl"tt_e 99ltt9-r1_0!1119 qg_llp?L1y]: ps]&ig_s a p{q{1_,-9_s__. l
i Experience i, drivi,g business srccess with in ;,rd;it.d"al,rg;f 

lj diverse business environr.nents, eco,orric conditio,s, crll,,re, i

i regulatory fi'ameworks and a broad perspective on dornestic rnarket i

i.p-.ppq$u:-i!ee.-.. -.- i

i Fxtended i;A;'{li'p ;.Fii"";t};i: ;;id,iii;;';i erit"'[i:iie, Hi;iiilt 
iin a practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic 
i

planning and risk rnanagerrent. Dernorrstrated strengths in developing i

talerrt, planni,g successiors and driving cha,ge ancl long-ierrn i

ig'".y-tl -r---:----------..--- -_---------..________-,

Wi4q -\-t1qyl"dg--e-: _eIpe-Ii9!tq_e_qld e.{pgqqle !! t!t.e_legop{gryi ry_qrkCI j

A history of leading growth through ,"qiriiitioni ila 
"ilre. 

bi,ai*;, I

qgrb!'teI-er_le yitll t_lte e!illly_ t_o_elqqq_s lb_s!14 q.| hqyl _d_"si.-!-o,:_', i

Service on a public corrpany board to develop i,*,igiii; ;diit I

maintaining board and rnauagerxent accountability, protecting i

--she-telql4ql i!19i9s1-s--e!:d q9wly!,,s ?p-_pl9pt-r_?19 g9.y9tgrl99 ptqgli_c,e!_ i

Code of Conduct

The Cornpany has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and Our Code (the Code) is applicable
to the Directors and ernployees. The Code gives guidance ancl support needed for ethical conduct of
business and cornpliance of laws. The Code reflect the core valuei of the Company viz. Ownership
Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Tearn and Excellence. All the directois including Senior
Managernent Personnel of the Cornpany have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct as on
Marclr 31,2020. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Manager and Chief Fina,cial Officer
(CFO), annexed hereto forrns part of this report. The code is available on the official website of the
company: www.western-ind ia.co. in

Committees of the Board

The Board has co,stituted following comrnittees of Directors:
o Audit Committee,
o Nornination and Remuneration Cornmittee,
o Stakeholders Relationship Committee, and
o Corporate Social Responsibility Cornrnittee

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Cornmittee consists of two Independent Directors and one Non-lrrdependent director. All
rnembers of the Audit Cornmittee are finarrcially literate and they have accountirig or related fi,ancial
management expertise. The prirnary purpose of the Audit Committee is to issist the Boarcl of
Directors (the "Board") of Western India Cornrnercial Cornpany Limitecl, (the "Company") in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

3L

Financial, Regulatory /
Legal &
Risk Management

Strategy and strategic
planning

Business Exposure

Leadership

Market Exposure
Mergers and Acquisitions

Corporate Governance



a) the accounting and fitrancial reporting processes of the Company, includilg its internal control
procedures, the integrity of the audited financial results ancl other financial information provided
by the Company to its stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,
c) the company's independent auditors' qLralification and indepenclence,
d) the audit of the Company's financial statements, and the performance of the Company's internal

audit function and its Independent Auditors.

Terms of Reference:

The role and terrns of reference of Audit Comrnittee covers areas mentioned under Part C of SchedLrle
II [See Regulation 18(3)] of the Listing Regulations and section 117 of the Cornpanies Act,20l3,
besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the Memters of the Auclit
Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial statements. The brief
terms of reference of the Audit cornrnittee are outlined lrere under:

a

a

Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal control systems ancl
the disclosLrre of its financial inforrnation;
Reviewing, with the l'lranagerrent, tlre annual financial statements and auditor's repoft thereon
before subrnission to the Board for approval, with particular ref-erence to:-
a. tnatters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Staterrent of the Boarc{,s

Report in terrns of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Contpanies Act,2013;
b. chatrges, if any, in accoutrting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of juclgrnent by

management;
d. significant adjustrnents made in tlre financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. compliance with listing and other legal reqLrirernents relating to financial statentents;
f. disclosure of arry related party transactions;
g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report.
Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
Reviewiug, with the lnanagernent, the statement of Lrses / application of funds raised througS an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statentent of funds utilizecl for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the repoft
submitted by the monitoring agency rnonitoring the Lrtilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and rnaking appropriate recomrnendations to the board to take up steps in tLis rratter;
Recornrnendation for appointment, rernuneration and terlns of appointment of agclitors of the
company;
Approval of payment to statutoty auditors for any other services rendered by thern;
Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and perfbrmauce and effectiveness of
audit process;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the aLrdit cornrreuces about the rrature and scope of
audit as well as post-aLrdit discussion to asceftain any area of conoern;
Approval (including ornnibus approval) or any subsequent modificatiorr of transactions witlr
related parlies;
Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function inclLrding frequency of internal auclit reporls;
Reviewing the findings of any observatious by the internal ar-rclitors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature and
reporting the rnatter to the Board;
Evaluation of internal financial controls;
Reviewiug, with the managel'nent, perforrnance of statutory and interual auditors, adequacy of
the internal control system;
To look iltto the reasons for substantial defaults in the payrnent to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividencls) and creditors;
Approval of appointmetrt of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience
and background, etc. ofthe candidate;

a

a

a

a

a

a
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a

a

a

a

a

a

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
Reviewing mallagement Ietters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;
Reviewing the appointrrent, relroval and tenns of remuneration of the internal auditor;
Discr-tssion with internal auditors ou any significant findings and follow up thereon;
To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanisrn;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Reviewing valuatiott of underlakings or assets of the cornpally, wherever necessary.
Statement of deviations:
(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of rnonitoring agency, wherever

applicable, subrnitted to stock exchange(s) in terrns of Regulation 32(l) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 20l S.

(b) Annual Statentent of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offbr document
/ prospectus / notice iu terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligatiols and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 I 5, wlrerever applicable.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
cornmittee.

Constitution of the Audit Committee

The Composition of the Comrnittee, together with the details of the attendance of each rnember as at
3 l'r March. 2020 is a.iven below:

Sr.

a

a

Name of the
I)irector Designation Meetings

Attended Category

l. A. P. Mallawat Chairman Non- Executive Independent
Director

T.K. Bhattacharya Member
Director

3. Subhas Jajoo Member
Director

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Six Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2019-20 on tlie following dates:

./ 27tt'April,2019

./ 29tt'May,2019
,/ 13tl'August,20l9
./ l4tl' September,20lg
./ 23'd November,2019
,/ 3 1't January ,2020

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nornination and Rernuneration Committee acts in accordance with the prescribed provisions of
Section 178 of the cornpanies Act,2013 and the Listing Regurations.

The brief tenns of reference of the Cornrnittee are as follows:

(a) To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining qualifications,
positive attributes/experience for appointrnent and independence of a director,

(b) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the clirectors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and to ensure compliance with the remuneratiorr
policy set forth by the Cornpany;

(c) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who rnay be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recomrnend to the board for their
appointment and/or removal ;

3r,
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(d) To fonnulate the criteria for evaluation of perforrnance of independent directors and of the
board of directors as a whole;

(e) To extent or continue the terrn of appointrnent of the independent clirector, on the basis of the
repoft of performance evaluation of independent directors;

(0 To reporl on the systems and on the arnount of the annual rernuneratiorr, in whatever forrn, of
directors and key managerial/senior managemeut personnel to the Board.

(g) To perfonn such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination ancl Remuneration
Committee
The Composition of the Cornrnittee together with the details of the attendance of each member during

.L!.e- !,-te[eLc_r ypt:?9]?2Q _F e!.y-",t h_glqyiSr. i Name of the
_c lllllllgl?_l yg4l 4!l l-7:z__u Jl grven below:
sr. j Name oiur"- --- i- * - c;G;"y -- i ffirsil6; I M;"iil; j

i - iatt"na"l i1, i A. P. Mallawal i Non- Executive rndaraiAe;il Dlidtor 
:i-alr;lili;; 

I 
- j j

3. irPMu,dr" i Non-Execu,ffiIil;,*;&;d;a-i;il.:l 4 -j

-c;G;"y iffirsil;ffij M;;;ils;
i i Attended

r.qii-_E1-"-..'riiietr:aipilqeiir biiairei l" -Crreliriqri "i -' 5: 
"

_{o1 _E1eg91tiv9 l!depe,"1dgtt! Dlteglqt i Me11pe1 f 4
Nort-ExecutiveNon-lndependent i ^- i 4

oireqr-or. -- " -- l ':ll?': i

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Four NRC Meetings were held during the financial year 2019-20 on the following dates:

./ 27tt' April,2019
,/ 29ttMay,2019
,/ 16tl' August, 2019
./ 29'l' January ,2020

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
o Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
o Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
o Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the corlpany.
o Meaniugful and constructive contribr,rtion and inputs in the Board/ Cornrnittee meetings.

Remuneration Policy

Tlie committee forrnulates the criteria for cleterrnining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recourmends to the Board a policy relating to ihe remurreration for the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. TheComrnittee reviews ancl recornmends payment of annual
salaries, commissiotl and other ernployment conditions of the Directors ancl l(ey Mariagerial Persolnel.
The rernuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of performance /
achievements otl a periodical basis. No Stock option has been granted to any of the Diiectors during
tlre financial year 2019-20. The policy forms part of the Directors' Reporl. The Cornpany doesni
have any pecuttiary relationship or transaction with any of the uon-executive directors. None of the
Directors have been given any retnuneration during the financial year under.review except Meeting
Fees as per details given below.

The details of meeting fees paid to the Di the ended 3 I't Marchrrectors for 2020:
Director Catego{y Sittine Fees R)
J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-lndependent Director 21.000
Ruj Karnal Devi
Bangur

Non- Executive Non-lndependent Director 15,000

Subhas Jaioo Non- Executive Non-lndependent Director 23,400
S. K. Rathi Non- Execut ve Non-lndependent Director 15,000
A. P. Mallawat Non- Execut ve -lndependent Director 25.800
T.K. Bhattacharya Non- Executive -lndependent Director 28,200

Total 128.400
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5. StakeholdersRelationshipCommittee
Stakeholders Relationship Cornrnittee acts in accordance with the prescribed provisiols of Section
178 of the Compatlies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations ancl inter ulia approves transfer &
transmissiolt of shares, issue of duplicate/re-materialisecl shares and consolidation & splitting of
certificates, review rreasures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review the
adherence to the service standards adopted by the Cornpany irr respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of complaints from investors includin[
inter-alia non-receipt ofannual reports and non-receipt ofdeclarecl dividends etc.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The

i1",-9_! qltl* 9qrymittee ${!g lhq
Narne of the Director
J.P. Mundra Chairntan -l{g,t : -E5.g 

g ltJ_r_y--e--N 9ll _h 4e pe n d e nt D i rec
Menrber

T.K. Bhattacharya Member fron't
14.08.2019

corporate Social Responsibility (csR) committee has been constitLrted by
and overseeing the execution of the cornpany's cSR policy as prescribed
2013 and Rules made thereunder. The cSR committee comprises of two

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
No Stakelrolders Relatiottship Comrnittee Meeting was held clLrring the financial year 2019-20.

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance officer
No investor grievances were received during the financial year fiorn the stakeholclers. Further
there were no pending transfers for the year under review.

6. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
the Board for formulating
under the Cornpanies Act,
independent directors and

two non-executive directors. The members of the cSR comrnittee are:
Sr. No. Name Designation in

Companv
Status in the Committee

1 Shri A. P. Mallawat Independent Director Chairrnan
2 ShriT.K. Bhattacharya Independent Director Mernber
J Shr J. P. MLrndra D rector Member
4 Shr SLrbhas Jaioo D rector Mernber

The CSR Report as reqtrired utrder the Companies Act, 2013 for the year enclecl 3l't March, 2020
is attached to the Board's Report.

Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee
One CSR Cornrnittee Meeting was held during the financial year 2019-20 on 3.d March,2020.

36

below:

Further the details of the Cornpliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances is
provided here under:

Non- E,xecutive Independent Director

Mohta
21, Strand Kolkata- 700 001
033- 2230 7905



7. Details of General Body Meeting

Annual General Meeting
Tlie details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution, if
any, passed thereat is provided hereunder:

i Year
i Ended

ii ,i"M;;h;
i zotq
l----------:--------------

i 3 l'' March,
i 2018
l-----:---;i---------------
i 3l' March,
i 2017

t_____---______-________-_-

Day, Date and Time

None

None

Remote e-voting and ballot at the AGM
To allow the shareholders to vote on the resolutions proposed at the AGM, the Company has arranged
for rernote e-voting facility. The Company has engagecl NSDL to provide e-voting facility to all the
rnetnbers. Metnbers whose ltames appear on the register of members as on the record date shall be
eligible to participate in the e-voting.

The facility for voting through ballot will also be rrade available at the AGM. Members who have not
cast their votes by rernote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM.

8. Means of Communication
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Cornpany are forwarded to Stock
Exchange irnrnediately upon approval by the Board of Directors and are sirnultaneously published
in newspapers in Englislt and Bengali (regional language) narnely Business Standard and Sukhabar.

In accordatlce with the Listing Regulations, data peftaining to Shareholding pattern, euafierly
Financial Results and Other Details are forwarcled to the Stock Exchange ancl u."-rlro dissernilated o,
the website of the Cornpany.

During tlte year under review, no presentation was made to the institLrtional investors or analvsts.

3+

Venue Special
Resolutions

Passed
Saturday, 7tr' Septemb er, 2019

at l0:30 A.M.
21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700001

Yes

Saturday, 4'" AugLrst, 2018 at
l0:30 A.M.

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700001

Tuesday, l2t" September,
2017 at l0:30 A.M.

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700001

Annual General Meeting Wedrresday, the 30tr' September, ZOiO ii t.SO p.M. ai
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001
Book Closure Dates: 23.09.2020 to 30.09.2020 (both days inclusive)
E-votirrg Dates: 21.09.2020 to 29.09.2020

Dividend payment date has been recornrtrended bv the Board this
Listing on Stock
Exchange The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).

7, Lyons Range,
Kolkata - 700 001

The cornpany has paid the annual listing fee of the exchange for trre

Scrip Code: I 0033036
Code No.:7401



10. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Maheshwari Datarnatics Pvt. Ltd. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Cornpany
having its registered office at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5tr' Floor, Kolkata - 700 001. Contact
No.033-22482248,22435029, Fax: 033-22484i81 . Email Id: rndpldc((D_vahoo.com.
RTA also maintains a website: www.ntdpl.ilt

11. Share Transfer System
Share transfers are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and approved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Cornmittee, if the documents are complete in all respects, within lldays
frorn the date of lodgrnent. The same is examined by a Practicing Cornpany Secretary on half y"u.iy
basis and a Certificate as required under RegLrlation 40(9) of the Listing RegLrlations is obtained and
forwarded to CSE where the Company's shares are listed.

12. Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattem of the cornpany's shares is provided below:-

Distribution of shareholding as on 3110312020
Share Holdins No of Holders oh age No of Shares o/o age
upto 500 J 3 0.0000 215 1.1944
501 to 1000 I r0.0000 725 4.0278
100 to 2000 I 10.0000 2000 lt illr
200 to 3000 J 30.0000 7080 39.3333
300 to 4000 I r0.0000 3 555 19.7500
400 to 5000 I 10.0000 4425 24.5833
Grand Total r0 I 00.0000 r 8000 t 00.0000

13. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity
The Company's equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National
Securities Depository Lirnited and Central Depository Services (lndia) Lirnitecl.

As on 31" March, 2020, 17965 equity shares, constitr-rting gg.81% of the paid-Lrp equity capital of
the cornpany, stood dematerialized and the rest are in physicar form.

Statr-rs of total nurnber of shares den-raterialized and loryr3: _o,_t i_tllwtlr-"!r ?Q?Qi
i1y -o! \ai4 qr 9.qpi1_4,

qq0q
) l'7<a) t t J
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100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible Instruments
The Company has trot issued any CDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instr.urnents

15. Secretarial Audit
Pursttant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rr-rles framed thereunder, Mr. Mukeslr
Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary was appointecl by the Corrrpaly to conduct Secretarial
Audit of records and docuuents of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Repoit confirrns that the
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14. Financial

Denositorv No. of Shares
NSDL 15.490
CDSL

Phvsical
Total 18,000

Calendar (Tentative
Financial Year l" April, 2020 - J I't March. 202 I

First quarter results 14"' August, 2020
Half-yearly results 14"'Novernber.2020
Third quarter results I 4"' Februarv. 2021
Fourth quarter & Annual results End of May,2021



Company has cornplied with all the applicable provisions of the Cornparries Act,20l3, Depositories
Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and all the relevant RegLrlations ancl
Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable to the Company. Tlie audit also covers the reconciliation of
share capital audit, on quafterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and
total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total paid up capital is in agreemept with the
total number of shares in physical fonn and the total nurnber of dernaterialized shares held with
NSDL & CDSL.

16. Risk Management
The main identified risks at the Cornpany are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks
and Legal & Regulatory Risks, The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit Comrnittee of the
Company on a corttitruous basis. The Audit Cornrnittee ensures that risks to the Cornpany's continued
existence as a going concem and to its developrnent are identified arrd adclressed on timely basis.
However, constitutiott of Risk Management Committee is not applicable to the Company in terrns of
Regulation 2l of the Listing Regulations.

Add for

Credit Ratings

No instances have occurred during the financial year 2019-20 which warrant the Company to obtain
Credit Rating.

17. Other Disclosures
a) Durirrg tlre financial year 2019-20 there was no materially significant Related Party

Transaction, with the Directors, or the Managernent, their retatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Cornpany at large except those disclosed in tlie Board,s
Report. There was no related pafty transaction during the year, i.e. transactions of material
nature, with its prornoters, Directors or the rnanagernent that rnay have potential conflict with
the interests of Cornpany at large.
There was no llon-colnpliance by the entity, penalty, strictures irnposed by stock exchange or
the board or alty statutory authority, on any rnatter related to capital martets, during the last
three years.

The Cornpatty has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior lnanagement personnel.
The Cornpany has adopted a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (',the
Code") in accordance with the reqr:irernents of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulatiorrs , 20l5 as amended upto date. The code expressly
lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be rnade, by the
directors and the senior managelxent personnel while dealing with the shares of the Company
on the bourse and cautioning thern on the cousequences of non-compliance thereof. The
Company has also fornted Whistle Blower Policy. Further, we afflrrn that no persolnel have
been denied access to the Audit Cornrnittee. Employees cart report to the Management
collcerns regarding unethical behavior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's
Code of Conduct Policy.

b)

c)

d)
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ress
Chief Financial Officer Cornpany Secretary
Ashish Kedia Ghanshyam Mohta
21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700 001

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700 001

Tel: 033 -22309601
Fax: 033-22131650

T el: 033 -223 0l 90 5, 223 1 47 5 6
Fax: 033-2213 1650

Email ID: westernindiacommercialcoltd@qmall.com
Website: www.western-inffi
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The Cornpany is ilt cornpliance with all mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.
The Cornpany has not adopted alty llon-lllarrdatory requirernents.

Certificate from Company Secretary in practice
Mukesh Cliaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary, has issued a certificate as required uncler
clause l0 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, oonfirming that ione of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or clisqLralified l'rorn being
appointed or continuing as director of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairc
or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this repoft.

Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors:-
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Cornpany, on a consolidated basis, to the
statu auditor are as follows:
Tvne of service Fiscal2020 Fiscal20l9
Audit Fees I s800 r 5000
Tax Audit Fees 5800 5500
Others 945

h) No complaint pertaining to sexual harassrnent was filed by any wornan during the finalcial
year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable.

18. Discretionary Requirements
Tlte Cornpany has also eusured the implernentation of non-marrclatory requirements as under:
i) Unrnodified audit opinions / reporting
ii) The Internal Auditor repofting directly to the A,dit cornmittee.

19. There are no shares lying in the demat slrspense / unclaimed suspense accourrt as on the clate of
this Report.

20. Prevention of Insider Trading
The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, nronitor and report trading by
insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) ReguLtions ,2015. This Policy also inclucles
code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information, initial
and continual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on a need-to-know basis. This policy
is available ou ollr website.

21. Auditor's Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required by Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Autlilor's Certificate on Corporate
Governunce is annexed to the Board's Repoft.

22. CEO and CFO Certification
The CFO acts as Manager of the Cornpany as well. The Manager unct CFO Certificalion is provided
in this Atrnual Report as required by the Listing Regr,rlations.

s)
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Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

CERTIFICATE
Qtursuant to clause l0 of Part C oJ'schedule V of LODR)

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause l0 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations,
2015 (LODR) in respect of western India commercial cornpany Lirnited
(C IN : L6 7 1 20W B 1 928P LC093924) I t rcrebv cerri fy that:

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, as ol'r March 31 , 2020, none of the directors on the board of tlre
Company has been debarred or disqualified frorn being appointed or continuing as director of
companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Place: Kolkata
Date:21't July,2020

Mukesh Chaturvedi
P ractic in g C ompany S ecre tary

ACS:10213
CP No.: 3390

4t



Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of Western India Commercial Company Limited

We, D'K' Chhajer & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Western India
Commercial Cornpany Limited ("the Company") have examined tlie cornpliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended March 31: 2020, as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to2l and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 201 5 as amended (collectively refeired 6 as "SEBI Listing
Regulations").

Managements' Responsibility

The cornpliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the Cornpany,s
management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control and procedures to ensure the cornpliance with the condition of the Corporate Governance
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the cornpliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of thi company.

We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the cornpliance with Corptrate
Governance requirements by the Cornpany.

We have canied out an exarnination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with tlie
Guidance Note orr Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ICAI), tlie Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Conrpanies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the puipose of this certificate ancl as per the
Guidance Note on Repofts or Certificates for Special Purposei issuecl by the ICAI which requiies that
we comply with the etliical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have cornplied with_ the relevant applicable requirernents of the Standard on euality Control
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Finns that Perform ALrdits and Reviews of Historical Inforrnation, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our exarninatiotl of the relevant records arrd according to the infonnation and explanations
provided by the Managetnent, we certify that the Cornpany has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulatiorrs l7 to 27 andclauses (U) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)
of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing ir"g,itutions duri'ng the yeai
errded March 31,2020.

We state that such cotnpliattce is neitlter an assurance as to the future viability of the Compapy nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Managernent has conducted the affairs of the Comfany.

For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firnr's Registration Number: 304 1 388
Niraj Kumar Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Mernbership Number: 051 lj 0
Kolkata
Dated: 22"d July,2O2O
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Manager and CFO Certification

To,
The Board of Directors,
Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.
Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

I, Ashish Kedia, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of tlre Cornpany, to the best of rny knowledge
and belief, certifu that:

l. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of WESTERN INDIA
COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED and a surnmary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information of the Cornpany and the Board's Report for the financial year
ended March31,2020.l state that:

a. these statements do not contain any rnaterially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that rnight be rnisleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Cornpany's affairs for the period
presented in this repoft and are in compliance with existing accouuting standards, appiicable
laws and regulations.

2. There are no transactions entered into by the Cornpany during the year which are fraudulent,
illegalor in violation of the Company,s Code of Conduct.

3. I accept responsibility for establislring and maintaining internal controls for financial reporling
and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Cornpany pertainin!
to financial repofting and confinn that there have been no rnaterial weakness in iirternal controli
over financial reporting including any corrective actions with regard to deficiencies.

4. I have indicated to the Auditors and tlre Audit Committee:
a. that there were no significant changes in iriternal control over financial reporling during tlre

year:,

b. All significant changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the same
have been disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and

c. that there were no instances of significant fraud that involve rranager.nent or other employees
who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial repoting.

5. I further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this Report.

Place: Kolkata
Date:22"d July'2020 

Ashish Keaia
Manager and

ChieJ'Financial (fficer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The oLrtlook presented herein is based on lranageurent's own assessrnent and it may vary due to future
economic and other developrrents in the country and abroad.

INDUSTRY & ECONOMY OVERVIEW

Global Economy

According to International Mortetary FLrnd (lMF), Global ecouorny is estirnated to have grown at
2.9o/o in 2019, slower pace cornpared to 2018. This was primarily clriven on the back of increasing
trade tensions between US and Cliina which led to declirre in global manufacturing activity and tradel
The slowdown in activity was severe across ernerging market and developing econornies, including
Brazil, Russia, India, China, and Mexico as well as a few econornies suff-ering fi.orn rracroeconor-nic
and financial stress. Increasing uncertainty in the econontic enviror.rment amid lising tariffs and rapid
shifts in trade policies resulted in deteriorating business confidence and clampened iirvestrnent growth
across tnost regions. Sluggish detnand for durable goods led to sharp decline in capital spending and
international trade flow was severely inrpacted.

According to the IMF. tlte global ecorlorny is pro.jected to contract sharply by 3.0% in2020 arnid the
spread of the novel corona virus which has significantly disrLrptecl econornic activity leadilg to
weakening global dernand aud rnassive decline irr investrnent ancl global trade. Consurnption growth,
in particular, has beett downgradecl for most econornies, reflLcting the larger-than-antLipatecl
disrLrption to dotnestic activity. The pro.iections of weaker private consurnption reflect a cornbination
of a large adverse aggregate demand shock from social distancing and lockdowns, as well as a rise in
precautionary savittgs. Moreover, investrnent is expected to be sLrbclued as firrns defer capital
expenditures amid high uncertainty. Policy supporl partially offsets the deterioration in private
domestic demand.

However, the IMF believes that there will be revival in growth after the impact of pandemic facles
dLrring the second half of 2020 and that the global economy is projectecl to grow by 5.8% in 202l,ln
an attempt to lirnit the ecotrotnic and financial fallout from the corona virus panderrric, various
countries have adopted monetary easing and fiscal stirnulus to revive the econorny. Though the
ecollolny is likely to remain uuder stress in the near terrn, containrnent of ongoing contagion risk,
irnproving liquidity condition coupled with low oil prices is likely to bring staUitity to the battered
economy.

Indian Economy

Indian economy had shown clear signs of slowing down even before the onset of the pandemic. The
country's GDP grew by about 4.2%o i"t the FY l9-20 with a moderate growth of about 4.8yo inthe first
half year. A weak coltsulrler dernand, slow private investrnent and tight credit conditions in the
financial sectors were some of the key factors for the deceleratecl growth cluring the year whiclt
negatively irnpacted ilrvesttnettts. cor.rsurtrption and Expofts. Reforrns irrrdertaken Uy ttre government
to revarnp the financial sector, address the NBFC crisis, reduce the stress in the reai estate sector ancl
speed up the resolutiott under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (lBC) had a marginal irnpact clgring
tlre second half year. However, GDP growth tapered significantly to3.1%o in the fourth quarter due t6
the outbreak of corona virus pandernic and the resultant nationwide lock dowl.

Several lreasures atltrounced by the Governrnent to revive the economy inclLrcled capital infusion into
public sector banks to improve liquidity and push credit off take, merger of public sector banks to
enhatlce credit capacity, reduction in policy rates, sharp cut in corporate tax rate, sops for real estate
for last mile funding for stalled projects and support to NBFCs upder the Partial Credit Cuara,tee
Scheme.

The Covid-19 pandemic has disrLrpted trade ancl rnanufacturing activity ancl brought the econorny to a
near standstill. The paltdemic carne at a time when India's ecoltotny was already slowing, dLie to
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persistent financial sector weaknesses. The severe disrLrption of economic activities caused by covid-
19, both through dernand and supply shocks, has overtaken the incipient recovery in the econorny
leading to massive job losses. The Central Bank besides reducing the policy rates injected liquidity in
the system to counter the loorning threat of slowdown and kick-start ihe ..o,lo,ry. The curient
estimates from various agencies sllggest that Indian economy rnay contract by around 4o/oto 4.5%o in
FY2 I due to the impact of deadly virus on the manufacturing ancl tracling activity.

NBFC Industry & Business Update

India's financial sector is a highly diversifiecl one comprising conrrnercial banks, insuralce
compatlies, nott-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other
smaller financial entities. 'lhe sector is predominantly clriven by banking and non-banking financial
companies ('NBFCs'). Over the past few years NBFCs have ernerged as irnpoftant finalcial
inteflnediaries, patlicularly for the small-scale and retail sectors in uuderserved areas ancl urbanked
sectors. The sector turned out to be growth ettgine in an environment where significant irnportance is
assigned to financial inclusion and have aided the economy in employment generation and wealtlr
creation by rnaking credit available to the rural segment. However, in recent tirnes tlre sector is
becoming a weaker segrnent in lndian financial systern.

During FY l9-20 the sector continued to witness liquidity challenges which led to cerlain NBFCs
experience stress in their loan books as evidencecl by the growing level of non-perforrning assets
('NPAs'). The onset of COVID-19 during the foLulh quafter fufther weakenecl NBFCs stalce in the
econonly. Asset quality deterioration in NBFCs is expected to be more severe than banks because of
its exposure in riskier segrnents. To support the econorny, the RBI easecl rnonetary policy to maintairr
adequate liquidity in the systeln, facilitate smooth bank credit f'low and moderate financial strain.
Revival measures initiated by the regulator inclucle provision of moratorium on EMI repayments, out
on repo rates from 6.25% to 4.40Yo, relaxatiorr in classification of loans as NPAs and provision of
long-term repo operations (LTRo). Prudential requirements for banks have also been eased to free up
Iiquidity for lending.

The COVID-19 pandernic is also expected to result in deterioration in the asset quality of the filancial
sector. NBFCs too will face sirnilar pressures. Early inclicators of non-delinquent custorrers opting for
rnoratoriums reflect a considerable Ievel of anxiety frour custor.ners. It repails to be seen 5ow this
anxiety eases wlren econotnic activities resln.ne. A long-drawn lockdown or fi-equent lockdowns of
ecollomic activities rnay require the RBI to frarne forbearance policies for irnpacted borrowers like a
comprehensive one-time restructuring of loarts withoLrt irnpacting asset classification. Such a otre-tirne
restructuring framework wor,rld enable financial sector to contirrue to lend and also provicle custolners
adequate time to recover frorn the ecorromic crisis and lronour their obligations.

COMPANY'S POSITION

The Company is registered with the RBI as a Non-Banking Financial Institution and is categorized as
Non-Deposit taking NBFC" (NBFC-ND). The operation of the cornpany during the year was
centered itr investrnents itt shares and securities. Additionally the contpany was investilg in MLrt,al
Fultds too' The main income of the Company is dividend incorne on long-tern.r investrnents, interest
on fixed deposit and profit frorn sale of investments. The results of the Company's operations forthe
financial year ended 3 l't March, 2020 have been dealt with in the Director.'s Replrt.

The Company, being into finance and investrrent activity, the irnpact o1'rlovernent of stock markets
affects its profitability. The Corrpany has long-ternr orientation irr its investrnents and rnainly invests
in listed equities. The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk with adequate return.

Setrsex closed the year with negative return of 23.TYo, while BSE Midcap index was down3l.lvo.
The sectors which outperfort.ned the Sensex were technology and healthcare, while balks/financials,
ittfrastructttt'e and automobiles underperformed. Energy sector perforrled learly ip li,e with the
Sensex.
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OUTLOOK

A significant portiorl of tlie Cornpany's income arises frorn investrnent ancl share trading operation,
which are largely depertdent on the condition of the stock market. The stock rnarket activity depends
largely upon the econolnic growth lroulenturrl and a combination of other factors like inflation,
dornestic savings, surging portfolio investments into India etc. The unusual developments in the globai
economy may pose uncefiainties and challenges for the emerging market econornies like India.
However, the Company has investrnent policy wherein it invests in those securities which have easy
liquidity, better yield and potential for price appreciation in mecliurn to long run.

RISK & CONCERNS

Many developing countries including India have reaped handsome rewards from surging capital
inflows in recent years. This is regarded as a welcome phenomenon. But surging capital inflows cal
sometimes have destabilizing side effects, urrderrnine cornpetitiven.r. of"*port inclustries, and
potentially giving rise to inflation arroug refonns setbacks, geopolitical tension, economic slowdown
and policy uncertainty. Surging trade wars and tariffs are another area of concem as they restrict the
scope of free tnovetnent of commodities frorn the enterging economies to the developed ones.

Other risks & concerns could be:
o Unsuccessful strategic engagernents and investrnents
o Declining interest rates
o Liquidityconstraints
o Natural and manmade disasters

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Cornpany has implemented a system of internal controls and risk management for achievipg
operational efficiency, optirnal utilization of resources, credible financial r"po,ting and cornplianci
with local laws.

The systern is airned at covering all areas of operatiorrs. The transactions enterecl into by the Cornpany
are duly authorized and recorded correctly. It has irnplemented suitable controls to ensure that
financial transactions are repofted with accuracy and that there is strict compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. These controls are regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness.
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om I l.t ratios as key Ilnarrcial ratios
Pafticulars Financial Year

2020 20t9
GNPA (%) NIL NIL

NNPA (%) NIL NIL

Return on Assets (%) 0.83 0.27

Return on Equity (%) 0.83 0.27

Net Interest Margin (%) r00 100

Current Ratio 230 662

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00

Net Profit Margin (%) 92.30 30.9 r

EPS (Rs.) 1748.84 615.87

Price Earr-ring Ratio N.A. N.A.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations ancl Disclosure Requirements) (Arnendrnent)
Regulations,20l8, the Company is required to give details of significant ihanges (change of 250/o otr
more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key sector-specific financial ratios.

The C has identified the followi

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements under "Matragement Discussion & Analysis" describing the Company's objectives,
estimates, expectatiotls or predictions may be forward looking statements within thl rneaning oi
applicable securities laws and regulations. AlthoLrgh the expectations are based on reasonable
assumptions' the actual results could materially cliffer from those expressed or irnplied, since the
Company's operations.are influenced by rnany external factors beyond the control oithe Cornpany.
Investors are cautioned that the Company assllrnes no responsibility to publicly amend, modifr, reviie
or update any forward looking statement or opir.rior.r, on the basis of uny rutr"quent cleveloprnents,
events or information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Western India Commercial Co. Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western India Commercial Co. Limited
(the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3lst March, 2020, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to

as "the Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (,,the Act,,)

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3l st March, 2020, and the profit and other

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are furlher described in the Auditor,s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western.Comrnercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3rst March, zozo

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note No- 3l to the financial statement which explains the uncertainties and

the management's assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-downs and other restrictions and

conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the

impact in the subsequent period is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit ofthe financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be

the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor,s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the infornration included in the Managenrent Discussion and Analysis,

Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder,s

Information, but does not include the financial statements and our ar,rditor's report thereon.

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

I Valuat i on qnd Exi s t e nc e o/' l nv e st m e nts -

We have focused on the valuation and

existence of the investrlents in Equity,

Preference Shares and Mutual Funds

because these represent a principal

element on the net assets in the Financial

Statements

Refer Note 6 to the Financial Statentents

We obtained independent confirmation of the number

ofunits held and net asset value per unit for each ofthe

of mutual fund units and market value for shares as at

the yearend date, confirmation of shares and its market

vale

We have also obtained the most recent set of audited

fi nancial statements for unquoted investments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western.Conrnrercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3r'r March, zozo

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any fonn ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents, our responsibility is to read the other

infonnation and, in doing so, consider whether the othel infornration is rnaterially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our l<nowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially rnisstated.

If, based on the work we have perforrned, we conclude that there is a material rnisstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have notlring to repor.t in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Conlpany's Board of Directols is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial staternents that give a true and fair view of the

financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance rvith the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting

Standardsspecifiedundersection l33oftheAct,readwithrelevantrulesissuedthereunder..

This responsibility also includes rnaintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of tlre assets of the Conrpany and for preventing and detecting

fi'auds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and

maintenance of accounting policies; making judgrnents and estimates that are reasonable and pr.udent;

and design, implementation and nraintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant

to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that give a true and fair view and are fiee

from nraterial r.nisstatentent, whether due to fraud or en.or.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Cornpany's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accountingunless nranagerxent either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Boald of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the cornpany's financial reporting

process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Mernbers of Western.Contnrercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year etrded 3r'r March, zozo

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiar Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free fi'ottr tnaterial misstatenrent, r,vhether due to fraud or error, ancl to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material rnisstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise fi'orn fi'aud or error and are considered rnaterial if, individually or in the

aggt'egate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financia[ statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise prof'essional judgrnent and maintain

professional skepticisnr throughout the audit. We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statenrents, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perfbrnt audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to plovide a basis for oul opinion. The risk of not

detecting a tnaterial Inisstatement lesulting fi'om fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error. as f[aud rnay involve collusiorr, forgery. intentional orrrissior.rs. misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opirrion on whether the company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures rnade by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of nranagement's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relatecl to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cornpany's ability to continue as a

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to rnodify our opinion. Our cor.rclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a nranner tltat achieves fair presentation.

5r



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western.Cornmercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3r$ March, zozo

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financialstatements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user

of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

Due to COVID 19 pandemic and the consequential nationwide lockdown announced by the

Central and State Government including the travel restrictions, maintenance of social distancing

etc., and the audit team could not visit the Company. We have performed the audit from remote

location, on the basis of data, scan copies, documents, management estimates, assumptions,

certificates and other information supplied electronically by the management on online platform.

We have relied on Management assurance of the authenticity, completeness and accuracy of these

records electronically submitted to us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western.Commercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3rst March, zozo

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) Without prejudice to the situation described under "Other matter" section, we have sought and

obtained allthe information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes ofour audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March,2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March,

2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repofting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B";

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule

1 I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western.Commercial India Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, zozo

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 3 I 't March, 2020.

ForDKChhajer&Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Partner
Membership No. 0l 7483
UDIN: 200 I 7483AAAAATl 208

Place: Kolkata
Date: l0'r'July, 2020
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Annexure A to Independent Auditorts Report
Western India Company Commercial Ltd.
on tlre Financial Statements tbr the year ended 3 1.1 March, 2020

i. The Company does not hold any fixed assets during the year ended 31" March, 2020. Therefore,
the provisions of clause 3(i) of the order are not appricabre to the company.

ii' The Company does not have any inventory and as such clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

lll. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, limited liability
partnership firm, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained uncler Section 189 of
the Act' Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii)t(a), (b) and (c)l of rhe said Order are nor
applicable to the Conrpany.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Cornpany being
a Non-Banking Finance Contpany. providing loans in the ordinary collrse of business/engagecl in
the business of financing of companies, provisions of Sec 1 85 ancl Section 1 86 of the Cornpanies
Act2013 are not applicable to the Company.

lv.

vl.

vll.

v. The Cornpany has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the rules fi'arned there under. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of the
order is not applicable on the colrpany.

The Central Governt.nent of India [ras not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (l) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of tlre company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory c'lLres, including provident
fund, Employees' State Insurance, Incorne tax, Goods and Service tax, Custolns Duty, cess
and other rrtaterial statutory dues. as applicable, with the appropriate autlrorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no r,rndisputed arxounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 3 I 't March, 2020 for a period of more than six nronths frorn
the date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess, etc, which have
not been deposited as at 3 I " March, 2020 ot-r accollnt of dispute.

The Company does not have any borrowings frorr financial institution or bank or Governr.rrent
nor has it issued any debentures as at the Balance Sheet date, hence the provisions of Clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

The Conrpany has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further public offer
(including debt instruments)/terrn loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Cornpany.

We have neither come across any instance of nraterial fraud on or by the Company, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have rve been infornred of any such case by the Management.

According to the infbrrnation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act.20l3.

viii.

ix.

xi.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditorrs Report
Western India Company Commercial Ltd.
on the Financial Statements lbr the year ended 3 l.t March, 2020

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of section 177 and I 88 of the Act. The details of such related pafty transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. No money was raised through preferential allotment/private placements of shares/fully/partly
convertible debentures during the year under review, hence, the provisions ofclause 3(xiv) ofthe
said order is not applicable to the Company.

xv' The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or person
connected with them. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserue Bank of India Act,
1934 and the registration has been duly obtained.

ForDKChhajer&Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Partner
Mernbership No. 017483
UDIN: 200 1 7 483 A AAAAT 1 208

Place: Kolkata
Date: 10'l'July, 2020
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Annexure B to lndependent Auditor's Report

Western lndia Company Commercial Ltd.

on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Western India Cornrnercial
Co. Lirnited ("the Cornpany") as at 31't March, 2020 in conjunction with our auclit of the financial
staterxents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's managernent is responsible for establishing and rnaintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Conrpany
considering the essential cornponents of internal control stated in tlre Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institr.rte of Clrartered Accountants
of India (fCAI). These responsibilities include the design, irnplernentation and rnaintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating eff-ectively for ensur.ing the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention altd detection of fiauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial infbrmation, as required under the
Cornpanies Act,2013 ("The Act").

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Cornpany's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance lvith the Guiclance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportirrg (the "Cuidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing,issuedbylCAlanddeemedtobepresclibedundersection 143(10)oftheActtotheextent
applicable to an audit of intelnal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical lequiret.nents and plarr and perfornr the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate interrral financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all rnaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contlols system over financial repofting arrd their opelating etl'ectiveness. Our ar"rdit of
internal financial coutrols over flnancial reportirrg included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a mater.ial weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of tttaterial rrisstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient ancl appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Contpany's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process clesigned to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to lndependent Auditor's Report

Western lndia Company Commercial Ltd.

on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2020

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
conlpanyrs internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (l) pertain to tlte maintenance of records that, in reasorrable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the cornpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perrnit prepalation of finarrcial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accotdance with authorisations of managernent and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurauce regarding prevention or tirnely detection of unauthor.ized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a rnaterial effect on the flnancial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over f.inancial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper rnanagement, override of controls, material misstatements due to
el'ror or fraud may occul and not be detected. Also, plojections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over flnancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may becorne inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of corrpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Cotnpany has, in all nraterial respects, read with irnpact of Covid- l9 stated in
Emphasis of Matter paragraph in Independent Auditor's Report, an adequate internal financial
contt'ols system over finarrcial reporting and such internal financial controls over flnancial reporting
were operating effectively as at 3ll'March,2020, based on the ir.rtelnal control over financial
repofting criteria established by the Cornpany considering the essential colnponents of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ovel Financial Reporling issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForDKChhajer&Co.
Chartered Accountanls
Firrn Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Partner

Membership No. 0I7483
UDIN: 200 I 7483AAAAAT I 208

Place: Kolkata
Date: l0'r'July, 2020
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.
For D. K. Chhajer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Portner

Membership No. 017483

Place : Kolkata

Date : 10th July, 2020

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN:- 00530475

Ashish Kedia

Monoger ond CFO

T.K.Bhattacharya

Director
DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Compony Secretory

Particulars Note
As at 31st March,

2020
As at 31st March,

20L9
As at 1st April,

2018
A

1

2

B

1

2

IASSETS

I
lFinancial Assets

l(a) curt', and Cash Equivalent

l(U) 
aant Balance other than (a) above

l(c)Loan
l(d)tnvestments
l(u) otf''rur. Financtal Assets
lrorar-
I

lNon-Financial 
Assets

(a) Current Tax Assets (net)
(b) Other Non- Financial Assets
TOTAL

TOTAT - ASSETS

ABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities
Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions

(b) Other Non-Financial Liabilities
TOTAL

Equity
(a) Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
Total

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABITITIES

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

7t
72

13

5,7L,O57

10,00,000

1,00,00,000

3,77,49,63,762

9,89,682

16,30,133

10,00,000

4,O5,69,7O,95L

2,O7,949

5,77,t99

3,55,17,L7,046

7,620
3,78,74,24,495

4,32,lLO

4,05,97,08,933

2,79,230

1",695

3,56,23,01,964

3,73,231_

21,33,580
4,32,LlO 2,8O,925 25,OG,,gtL

3,79,79,56,605 4,05,99,89,959 3,56,48,08,575

7,79,460

27,458
36,692

47,O00

7,54,763

110

45,250

7,34,750

9,558
2,43,5OO

1-9,00,000

3,78,58,13,005

2,Ot,973

19,00,000

4,05,'/9,87,995

1,99,559

19,00,000

3,56,28,L9,117
3,79,76,13,OO5 4,05,97,97,995 3,56,46,L9,117

3,78,78,s6,505 4,05,99,89,858 3,56,49,O9,675
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.
For D. K. chhajer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chortered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Pa rtne r
Membership No. 017483

Place : Kolkata

Date : 10th July, 2020

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN:- 00630475

Ashish Kedia

Monoger ond CFO

T. K. B hattacha rya

Director
DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Campony secretory

Particulars Note
Year ended

3lst March, 2020

Year ended

3lst March,2019

(r)

(il)

(il)

(tv)

(v)

(vt)

(vil)

(vil)

lRevenue from Operations

l(a) tnterest lncome
I

l(b) Dividend lncome
(c) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
(d) Net Profit on Sale of lnvestments
(e) Sale of Stock-in-trade
Total lncome

Expenses

(a) Purchases of Stock-in-trade
(b) Employee Benefit Expenses
(c) Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(loss) before Tax (t-ll)

Tax Expense

Current Tax

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit /(Loss)

(a) Equity lnstruments through OCI

(b) Financial lnstruments through OCI

(ii) lncome Tax relating to ttems that will not be reclassified
to Profit/(Loss)

Other Comprehensive lncome for the year (i + ii)

Iotal Comprehensive lncome for the year (V+Vt)

Earnings per Equity Share (FV Rs. 100/- each)
Basic & Diluted (Rs.)

1.4

15

16

77

18

L9

20

2T

2t

23

2,68,729

3,35,58,02 1

L5,42L

2,63,325

6,09,795
t,26,O2,t40

59,690

12,10,544

2,1,3,18,880

3,41,O5,496 3,58,61,049

1.0,66,449

t5,s9,847

2,13,18,880

9,33,379

t4,23,219
26,26,296 2,36,75,479

3,L4,79,200 1,21,95,571

1" 1,00,000

3,14,79,2OO 1,Lo,85,57L

(30,L6,47,0s2)

(20,07,088)
48,36,82,003

4,0L,294

(30,36,54,1801 48,4O,93,297

.27,21,74,980) 49,51,69,969

1,148.84 615.87
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for Year Ended 31st March, 2020

Statutory Reserye
Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 lC of the Reserve Bank of lnd ia Act, .1 934.
Accordingly an amount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for the year.

Retained Earnings
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations.
This reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Equity lnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair
value through Other Comprehensive lncome, net of tax. The same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those
instruments are disposed off.
Financial lnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome
This reserve representsthe cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of preference jnstruments measured at
fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome, net of tax. The same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those
instruments are disposed off.

ln terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Portner
Membership No.017483

Place: Kolkata

Date :10th July,202o

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN:- 00630475

Ashish Kedia

Monoger and CFO

T.K. Bhatta cha rya

Director
DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Company secretory

a. Share

Particulars Note Numbers
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed
As at 1st April, 20'18

lssue of Share Capital

As at 3'1st March, 2019

lssue of Share Capital

As at 31st March, 2020

*t^xq

13

18,000

o
18,000

0
18,000

b. Other

Pa rticula rs
Statutory
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Equity
lnstruments
Through OCI

Financial
lnstruments
Through OCI

Total

Balance as on 1st April, 2018
Profit/(Loss) for the Year
Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Other Comprehensive lncome for
the Year

Balance as on 31st March, 2019

Profit/(Loss) for the Year
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Other Comprehensive lncome for
the Year

Balance as on 3lst March, 2020

4,15,43,550

34,20,791

19,68,66,406
1,10,85,571
(34,20,1.91

3,32,44,06,559

48,36,82,003

2,602

4,01,294

3,56,28,L9,LL1
t,to,g5,g_7L

48,40,83,297

4,49,63,74L

62,95,840

20,45,3L,786

3,14,79,200
(62,9s,840

3,80,80,88,562

(30,16,47,092

4,03,996

(20,07,088,

4,O5,79,97,995

3,t4,7g,2loo

(30.36.54.180)
5,L2,59,59L 22,97,75,L46 3,5O,64,4L,47O (L6,03,792', 3,79,59,73,OO5
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.
For D. K. Chhajer & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chortered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay J,p. Mundra T.K.Bhattacharya
Pqrtner Director Director
Membership No.017483 DtN:- 00630475 DtN:- 00711665

Place : Kolkata

Date : L0th luly,2020
Ashish Kedia G.S Mohta

Monoger ond CFO Compony secretory

Particulars Year Ended
31st March. 2020

Year Ended
?1st Marrh ?o1Q

Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before Tax

for :

on Sale of lnvestments
Ilnterest lncome

Ioiuio"nO on lnvestments
I

lNet 
Gain on Fair Value Changes

lOperating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes

lAdjustments 
for :

l(lncrease)/Decrease 
in Other Financial Assets

l(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non- Financial Assets

llncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities

lln.r".ru /(Decrease) in Provision

lln.r"ur" /(Decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities

lCash Generated from Operations

lN.t ln.or. Tax (Paid)/Refund

lNr' cnsn FRoM/(usED tN) opERATING AcnvtnEs (A)
I

I

Cash Flow From lnvesting Activities
Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Mutual Fund

Purchase of Share

Sale of Share

lnvestment in Fixed Deposit
I nterest Received

Dividend Received

(lncrease)/Decrease in Loan Given
NET CASH FROM/(USED tN) tNVESTING ACTtVtTtES (B)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

NET CASH FROM /(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

NET TNCREASE/(DECREASE) tN CASH & CASH EQUTVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

3,14,79,200

(2,63,325)

{2,68,729)
(3,35,58,021)

(1.5,421.\

1",21,85,571

(72,7O,544)

(6,09,79s)

(L,26,02,140)

(s9,690)
(26,26,296)

2,01,2s3

r,695
1,32,459

(1,27,3Os)

36,572

(23,56,ss8)

(2,00,228)

21,,31,887

1,,750

20,013
(9,4481

.23,8L,622)
(1,s2,880)

(4,L2,6241

(10,0s,s98)

.25,34,5021 (L4,L8,6221

9,10,85,808
(11,9s,00,000)

(L,s4,37,s26)

2,24,83,475

1_,45,442

3,26,98,221.
(1,00,00,000)

9,14,72,057
(9,48,00,0001

(4,20,1.3,84L"

3,56,01,,412

(10,00,000)

6,09,79s
1,26,02,L40

L4,75,42O 24,7L,557

(10,59,0921

16,30,133
10,52,935

5,77,198
5,7L,OsL 16,30,133
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3]-'t MARCH, 2O2O

1. Corporate lnformation

Western lndia Commercial Company Limited ("the Company") is a public company limited by shares,
incorporated on 13th August 1-928 and domiciled in lndia. lts shares are listed on the Calcutta Stock
Exchange (CSE). The Company is carrying on business as a "Non-Banking Financial Company' (NBFC).
The Company is engaged mainly in investment in shares in securities & financial activity. The
Company is registered with Reserve Bank of lndia as NBFC. The Company's registered office is 21,
Strand Road Kolkata - 700 001.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd
AS) notified under section 133 read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March,2019, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201"4
(lndian GAAP or previous GAAP). The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 are
the first financials of the Company prepared in accordance with lnd AS. The date of transition to lnd
AS is 1st April, 2018. The figures for the year ended 31st March, 20L9 have now been restated under
lnd AS to provide comparability. Refer to note No.30 on First time adoption to lnd AS for information
on adoption of lnd AS by the Company.

b. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual
method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value/ amortised cost. (Refer note 3.3 below). The financial statements are presented in lndian
Rupees (lNR) which is also its functional currency.

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Recognition of interest income

lnterest income for all financial instruments measured at falr value through profit or loss (FVTpL) is
recognised using the contractual interest rate.

3'2' Recognition of Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from lnvestments measured at FVTOCI) is recognised when the
Company's right to receive the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

3.3 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3].'t MARCH, 2O2O
(i) Financial Assets -

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
r Debt lnstruments at Amortized Cost;
o Debt lnstruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI);

o Debt lnstruments at Fair Value Through profit or Loss (FVTpL); and
o Equity lnstruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

o Debt lnstruments ot Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both
the following conditions are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows; and
o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (ElR) method.

o Debt lnstruments at FVOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met:
o The objective of the business model is achieved by collectlng contractual cash flows and

selling the financial assets; and

. The asset's contractual cash flows represent Sppl.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in Other Comprehensive lncome. However, the interest income,
losses & reversals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. lnterest calculated using the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest) method is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as investment income.

Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as
FVTPL. ln addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amoftized cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTpL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and
Loss.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH, 2O2O

Equity lnstruments meosured at FVOCI: All equity investments in scope of lnd AS - 109 are
measured at fairvalue. Equity instruments which are, held fortrading are classified as FVTpL. For
all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in Other
Comprehensive lncome subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is

irrevocable. ln case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument are recognized in the Other Comprehensive lncome. There is

no reclassification of the amounts from Other Comprehensive lncome to profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. Dividends on Investments are credited to profit or loss.

o Equity lnvestments: lnvestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment, if any.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financialasset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. lnd AS - 1-09 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or
at an amount equalto the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since in itial recognition.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative fina ncia I instru ments.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTpL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fairvalue and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest)
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.'t MARCH, 2O2O
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, term deposits with original maturity
of less than three months from the date of acquisition. Term deposits held with bank, with original
maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months is a part of bank balance other
than cash and cash equivalents.

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an
integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.5. Property, plant and equipment (ppE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost
of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and
when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are shown under
other non-financial assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for lts intended use
at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously
assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred,

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH, 2O2O

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in
other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

3.5. Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value method (WDV)to
write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in Schedule ll of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

3.7. lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment,
based on internal/external factors. lf any such indication exists, then an impairment review is
undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of fairvalue less costs of disposal
and the asset's value in use.

3.8. Employee Benefits Expenses

3.8.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the
service' These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences, which are
expected to occurwithin twelve months afterthe end of the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

3.8.2. Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's contribution is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

3.9. Taxes

lncome tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

3,9.1 Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the lncome Tax Act, l-961. Current tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
Balance Sheet date.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH, 2O2O

3.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
repofting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset
is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome or directly in Equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other
Comprehensive lncome or directly in Equity respectively.

3.10. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH, 2O2O
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

3.11. Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

3.12. Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, Investing and financing
actlvities of the Company are segregated.

3.13 USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT

The preparation of the financialstatements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period end' Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in the
paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful Economic Lives ond lmpairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic factors (such as known
technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any changes could
affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment lf there are
events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be
recoverable. ln assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes in regulatory
environment are taken into consideration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH, 2O2O

(ii) ContingenciesondCommitments

ln the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other
claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable
estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best
estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financialstatements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's financial
position or profitability.

(iii) Foir Volue Meosurements ond Voluotion processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes' ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level l- inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. lnformation about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forword Tox Losses ond Unused Tox Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilised. ln addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year Ended 31st March, 2020

NOTE 4:-

NOTE 5:- BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EeUTVALENT

CASH & CASH

Particular As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March, 2019
As at 1st April,

20L8
Cash on Hand

Balances with Banks

a) in current accounts

b) in fixed deposit (maturing within a period of three months)

2,00,807

3,70,244

2,00,807

13,326

14.16,000

2,00,805

33,71,4

3,42,679
5,71,051 16,30,133 5,77,798

Particular As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March, 2019
As at lst April,

20L8
Fixed Deposits with Bank (maturing after period of three months) 10,00,000 10,00,000

10,00,000 10,00,000

NOTE 5: LOAN

Particular As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March, 2019
As at 1st April,

20L8
U n secu red, Consi de red Good
Loan to Body Corpoarte

-Tanushree Logistics Pvt Ltd 1,00,00,000

1,00,00,000

NOTE 7: INVESTMENT

Particulars As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March,2019
As at lst April,

2018
lnvestment measured at FWPL
i) Mutual funds
lnvestment measured at FVOCI

i) Preference Shares

ii) Equity Shares

iii) Debentures

lnvestment outside lndia
lnvestment in India

3,66,60,622

2,44,1,2,327

3,69,37,90,8L3

2,00,00.000

2,80,59,689

3,36,02,31,7

3,99,52,08,945

2,34,07,507

1,38,63,255

3,52,44,52,284

3,77,48,63,762 4,05,68,70,957 3,56,77,77,046

3,77,48,63,762 4,05,68,70,9sL 3,56,17,17,046

7.1 Details of investments are as follows :

Mutual funds

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

HDFC Arbitrage Fund

HDFC Overnight Fund

UTI Arbitrage Fund -Div

Payout

UTI Overnight Fund-

Regular growth Plan

UTI Ultra Short Term Fund
(formely known as Floating
Rate Fund)

5,1,7,956

2,509

4,75,757

3,545

1,20,46,O98

74,1,4,778

75,83,s60

96,76,246

14,38,785

1,664

2,30,20,557

50,39,t32 8,285 2,34,07,507

Total 3,66,60,622 2,80,59,689 2,34,O7,5O7
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY IIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2020

lnstrument

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Quoted Share

Baver Crooscience LTD.

Blue Dart Express Ltd.

Bosch Ltd.

Fort G loster I nd ustries

Limited

Foseco lndia Ltd.

GSK Consumer & healthcare
Ltd.

HDFC Bank Ltd.

Maruti Suzuki india Ltd.

NBI lndustrial Finance Co.

Itd.

Procter Gamble Hygiene
Healthcare Ltd.

Raymond Ltd.

Ricoh lndia Ltd.

SBI Card & Payment Service

Ltd.

Shree Cement ltd.
Shree Synthetic Limited

United Spirits Ltd.

Whirlpool of lndia Ltd.

Zee Entertainment
Enterprise Ltd.

4,290

3,750

4,009

830

200

3,700

17,250

1,159

306

2,00,650

22,550
3,775

1,48,26,025

82,46,437

3,76,66,760

19,94,850

31,89,030

2,43,34,575

1,79,O2,t77

77,740

7,89,307

3,52,06,75,128

1,a9,27,730

58,66,348

s,zso
4,009

495

1,850

3,000

17,250

1,159

50

99,564

2,00,650

20,000

3,775

1,34,76,937

7,29,03,064

6,75,304

42,90,1,50

2,00,17,650

L,64,O4,750

1,25,56,084

40,575

1.,92,60,656

3,74,s6,63,972

1,10,78,000

57,19,503

3,750
4,148

49s

2,1,00

1,850

3,000

1,7,250

1,159

50

99,564

2,00,650

4,000

4,100

1,,41,32,812

7,47,36,797

7,38,763

1,,28,10,21,O

34,89,285

2,65,83,300

2,35,60,913

1,1,0,75,71,4

1,88,437

1.,92,60,656

3,24,98,1,7,693

1.,25,1,8,600

23,59,550

lotal 3,64,O8,29,5O7 3,92,20,96,645 3,45,72,72,L3O

Unquoted (Fully Paid-Up)
Alfa Buildhome Pvt. Ltd.
Eastern I nvestments Ltd.

Karmayog Properties Pvt.

Ltd.

Ramgopal Holdings Pvt, Ltd.

Shree Cement Marketing
Ltd.

Suryadewata Properties
Pvt. Ltd.

Syngenta lndia Ltd.

The Kamla Company Ltd.

The Marwar Textiles
(Agency) Pvt. Ltd.

13,000
12,456

1,13,000

35,000

9,000

5,800

30

56,125

100

1.,38,48,250
2,32,82,630

1,24,25,480

12,24,300

1,66,320

6,18,802

29,278
12,95,36s

70,947

13,000
72,456

1,13,000

35,000

9,000

5,800

30

56,125

100

1,,19,1,7,036

4,53,6s,80s

1,24,26,359

1,2,16,936

1,,64,298

, 
7,17,O85

24,599

72,1,9,247

70,941"

13,000
12,456

1,13,000

35,000

9,000

5,800

30

56,725

100

1,19,77,O35
4,53,65,805

7,24,17,022

73,19,497

7,64,298

6,82,7t6

24,s99
12,79,247

70,941

lotal 5,29,51,306 7,3L.22,300 7,31.80.154

Preference Shares

Quoted (Fully Paid-Up)
7.8% Kamarhatti iute Mills
Ltd.

0.1% Sree Rayalseema

Alkalies & Allied Ch. Ltd.

Zee Entertainment
Enterprise Ltd. NCPS

3s,82,500 1,05,58,375

400

50

35,82,500

16,700

2,090

7,97,39,575

400

50

76,700

2,603

IOTAL 1,05,69,375 7,97,58,365 19,303

nz-



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2018
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Unquoted (Fully Paid-Up)

Cem Logistics Pvt Ltd

fanushree Logistics Pvt. Ltd

90,000

19,480

90,00,000

48,43,952

90,000

79,480

90,00,000

48,43,952

90,000

19,480

90,00,000

48,43,952

TOTAL !,38,43,952 7,38,43,952 1,38,43,952

Debentures
Unquoted (Fully Paid-Up)
Ramgopal lndustries Pvt.

Ltd.
2,00,000 2,00,00,000

NOTE 8:-OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particular As at 31st
Marrh ?O2O

As at 31st
March- 2O19

As at 1st April,
,fl19

lnterest accrued on Bank Deposits
lnterest Receivable on Loans

Dividend Receivable on lnvestments
Advance to Employees

6,595

1.,23,287

8,59,800

62,849

1,45,000

1,,620

6,000
9,89,682 2,07,849 7,620

NOTE 9:- OTHER NON-FINANC|AL ASSETS

Particular As at 31st

March, 2020
As at 31st

March, 2019

As at 1st April,
2018

Adva nce aga inst Sha re

Other 1,695

21,31,886

1,,694

1,695 21,33,580

NOTE 10:- OTHER FINANCIAL LtABtLtTtES

Particular As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March, 2019

As at 1st April,
2018

Other Payable-For Expenses 1,.79,460 47,000 45,250
1,79,460 47,000 45,250

NOTE 11:- PROVISIONS

Particular As at 31st

March,2020
As at 31st

March.2019
As at 1st April,

2018
Provision for Leave Salary

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 27,458
1,46,808

7,955
1,,26,795

7,95s
27,458 L,54,763 7,34,750

NOTE 12:- OTHER NON-FINANC|AL L|ABtLtTtES

Particular As at 31st
March, 2020

As at 31st

March,2019
As at lst April,

2018
Statutory Dues 36,682 110 9,558

36,682 110 9,5s8

+3



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year Ended 31st March, 2020

NOTE 13:-EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

13.1 The reconciliation of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

13.2 Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/- per share ( previous year
Rs.100/- each ) . Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any, proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing AGM. ln the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entltled to any of the remaining assets of the
company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the no. of equity shares held by them.

13.3 Reconciliation of the

13.4 Details of Shareholders Holding more than

L3.5 No shares have been alloted during the period of 5 years immediately preceeding 31st March, 2020
pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares and there has been
no buyback during the said period.

v\

Pa rticular 31st March,

2020
31st March,

20L9
1st April,

2018
Authorised:
35,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (previous year: 35,000)
lssued:
18,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each (previous year

Rs.100/- each )

Subscribed & Fully Paid :

18,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year Rs. L00/- each )

35,00,000

1-8,00,000

18,00,000

35,00,000

18,00,000

18,00,000

35,00,000

19,00,000

18,00,000
18,00,000 18,00,000 18,00,000

number of Shares and of Share amount
Particular ln Number Amount
As at 1st April, 2018

As at 31st March, 2019
As at 31st March, 2020

18,000

18,000

18,000

18,00,000

18,00,000

18,00,000

more 5% shares in the

Name

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 lst April, 2018
No. of

Shares held
% holding

No. of
Shares held

% holding
No. of Shares

held
% holding

Shri Harimohan Bangur

Asish Creations Pvt Ltd
The Oriental Fire &

General lnsurance Co.

Ltd.
Shree Capital Services

Ltd.
Tanushree Logistics Pvt.

Ltd.
NBI lndustrial Finance

Co. Ltd.

2,000

3,555

2,000

4,425

2,475

2,t05

11..11.%

1,9.75%

17j.1%

24.58%

13.75%

tL69%

2,000

3,555

2,000

4,425

2,475

2,705

1,1,.11%

19.75%

11..11%

24.58%

1,3.75%

1,1.69%

2,OOO

3,555

2,000

4,425

2,475

2,!05

1,1,.11%

1,9.75%

tL.1.t%

24.58%

13.75%

11.69%



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March, 2020

NOTE 14:- INTEREST INCOME

Particulars Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 3lst
March,2019

lnterest lncome
on Loan

on Fixed Deposits with Bank
1,,3L,743

l_,36,996

6,09,795

2,68,729 6,09,795

NOTE 15:- DIVIDEND INCOME

Particulars Year Ended 3lst
March,2020

Year Ended 3lst
March, 2019

Dividend lncome - on Mutual Fund

- on shares
LO,69,317

3,24,99,704
L,58,94L

1,,24,43,199

3,35,58,021- L,26,O2,1.40

NOTE 16:- NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGE

Particulars Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 31st
March,2019

Change in Fair Value of investment (FVTPL) L5,42L 59,590

1.5,42L 59,590

NOTE 17:- NET GAIN ON SALE OF TNVESTMENT

Particulars Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 31st
March,2019

Mutual Fund 2,63,325 12,70,544
2,63,325 12,70,544

NOTE 18:- SALE OF STOCK-|N-TRADE

Particulars Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 31st
March,2019

Sale of Stock in Trade 2,13,1_g,ggo

2,13,18,880

NOTE 19:- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Particulars Year Ended 3lst
March,2020

Year Ended 3Ist
March,2019

Salaries and Allowances

Gratuity
Leave Salary

Staff Welfare Expenses

9,24,593
1,,23,346

7,727

11-,393

8,85,152

20,o1,4

27,213
10,66,449 9,33,379
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

20.1 Details of

NOTE 21:- OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TNCOME

A) EqUIW SHARE

NOTE 20:- OTHER EXPENSE

Particulars Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 31st
March,2019

Rent

Rates and Taxes

CSR Expense (Note-20.1)

Goods & Services Tax

Depository Charges

Postage & Telephone
Printing and Stationery
Advertisement
Directors Sitting Fee

Legal and Professional

Custodial Fees

Listing Fees

Payments to Auditors
For - Statutory Audit
For - Tax Audit Fees

For other Services

Secu rity Tra nsaction Tax

Provision for Standard Assets

M iscellaneous Expenses

L1,,329

4,650

1"0,45,000

23,1,12

L0,251,

L79

60,322
\9,406

1,,28,4OO

88,195

37,530

29,500

l-5,800

5,800

44,496

19,503

L6,375

L1,,329

4,650

10,l_1,000

20,269

L,12L

571
36,42L
L7,31,6

L,12,600

1,04,5g5

21,,240

29,500

l_5,000

5,500

945

25,089

6,075
1"5,59,847 L4,23,21,9

s of CSR

Particulars 20t9-20 2018-19
(a) Gross amount req

the Year
(b) Amount spent during the year

1.0,40,449

1"0,45,000

L0,o5,27O

l_0,L1_,000

Particulars 20L9-20 2018-19
Realised gain/(loss)

U nrealised gain/(loss)
26,24,O99

(3O,42,77,LgL)
(4L,88,252)

48,79,7O,255
(3O,16,47,O92) 48,36,82,OO3

b) PREFERENCE SHARE

Particulars 20L9-20 2018-19
Realised gain/(loss)

U nrealised gain/(loss) (20,07,088) 4,O1,294
(20,07,088) 4,O1.,294

+e,



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

NOTE 22:- DEFFERED TAX ASSETS
ln respect of change in falr value loss of investment Deferred tax assets for the year ended 3l-st March,
2020 amounting to Rs. 57.97 Lacs, Deferred tax assets on Unabsorbed Losses amounting to Rs. 3 lacs and
Unabsorbed MAT for which future credit may be available amounting to Rs. 51.24 Lacs have not been
recognised on prudence basis.

NOTE 23:-EPS

Earnings Per Share (EPS) Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 31st
March,2019

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of profit and Loss

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as

denominator for calculating Basic EpS

Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares
Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as

Basic Earnings per Shares (Rs.)

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.)

Face Value per Equity Share (Rs.)

3,14,79,200

18,000

19,000

1,,749.94

L,749.94

100

L,1.O,85,57t

18,000

19,000

61.5.87

615.87

100

NOTE 24:-SEGMENT REPORTI NG

The Company has only one line of business i.e. Non Banking Financial activities. There are no separate
reportable segments as per lnd AS 108.

NOTE 25:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTON

I) Name of Related Party
a) Key Manogement Personnel Degination

Mr. Pankaj sureka ( Resigned on l6th August 2019) Manager and cFo
Mr. Ashish Kedia (Joined from 1st Feburary 2020) Manager and CFO

b) lnvesting Compony

Shree Capital Services Limited

Related Party Transaction during the year

NOTE 25-DISCLOSURE WITH REGARD TO DUES TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES
Based on the information available with the Company, there is no supplier in the aforesaid company. Thus
no disclosures relating to principal amounts unpaid as at the period ended 31st March, 2020 together with
interest paid /payable are required to be furnished.

Particular Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Year Ended 3lst
March, 2019

a) Remuneration
Mr. Pankaj Sureka

Mr. Ashish Kedia

b) Rent

Shree Capital Services Limited

8,02,354
2,t6,224

1.L,329

8,63,652

1,1,329

T+



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMTTED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March ,2OZO

NOTE 27:-CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company
complies wlth externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value

NOTE 28:-RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies & procedures
and internal financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of
key financial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk)that may arise as a consequence of
its business operations as well as its investing and financing activities.
Accordingly, the Company's risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks
are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner
and in compliance with applicable regulations. lt also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.

The Company's financial liabilities includes Other Financial Liabilities- comprising of general expenses.
The Company's principal financial assets include lnvestments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other
Financial Assets that are derived directly from its operations,

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or anotherfinancialasset.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient
cash and liquid investments available to meet its obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
management also considers the cash flow projections and level of liquid assets necessaryto meet these
on a regular basis.

Risk Exposure arising from Mitigation
Market Risk -
Securities Price

lnvestments in equity securities Continuous monitoring oi
performance of investments.

Credit Risk Failure of either counterparty to abide by the
terms of any financial contract.

Rigorous loan approval along with
strong NPA monitoring and

collection startegy.

+r



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

NOTE 29:.DISCLOSURE ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements,

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

Level 1: Level L hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. lf all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3:lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation Methodology
specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

' the fair value of invetsment in quoted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.

' the fair value of level 3 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants assumptions and
other data that are available.

of Financial lnstruments

Particulars Note
As at 31st March,

2020
As at 31st March,

20t9
As at 1st April,

2018

I 

Financial Assets

a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
ii) Other Bank Balances

iii) Other Financial Assets

Su b-Tota I

b) Measured at Fair Value through OCt (FVOC|)

i) lnvestment in Equity Shares

ii) lnvestment in Preference Shares
ii) Investment in Debenture

c) Measured at Fair Vatue through protit ,snfrlSlul
(FVTPL)

i) Investment in Mutual Fund

Sub-Total

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i) Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

4

5

8

7

7

7

7

10

5,71,Os1
10,00,000

9,89,682

16,30,133

10,00,000

2.O7.849

5,17,1,98

7,620
2s,60,733

3,69,37,90,81 3

2,44,12,327

2,00,00,000

28,37,982

3,99,52,O8,945

3,36,02,31"1

5,84,818

3,52,44,52,284

1.,38,63,255

3,73,82,03,'J.40

3,66,60,622

4,O2,88,7t,262

2,80,59,689

3, s3,83,1 5,539

2,34,O1,507

3,66,60,622 2,80,59,689 2,34,07,sO7

3,77,74,24,495 4,05,97,09,933 3,56,23,07,964

1.,79,460 47,OO0 45,250

L,79,460 47,O0O 45,250
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year Ended 3lst March, 2020

(iv) Significant Estimates
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see (ii) above,

NOTE 30:-FIRST TIME ADOPTTON OF tND AS
These financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2020, are the first financial statements the Company has prepared
in accordance with lnd AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 3l-st March,2019, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and guidelines issued by RBI (lndian GAAp or previous GAAp).
Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with lnd AS applicable for year ending on 31st
March, 2020, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 3Lst March, 2019, as described in the
summary of significant accounting policies. ln preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was
prepared as at April 01, 2018, the Company's date of transition to lnd AS. These financial results may require further
adjustments, if any, necessitated by the guidelines / clarifications / directions issued in the future by RBl, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or other regulators, which will be implemented as and when the same are issued and made applicable. This note
explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its lndian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at April 01, 20L8 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2020,

Exemptions applied:
lnd AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under lnd
AS' Set out below are the applicable lnd AS l0L optionalexemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from
previous GAAP to lnd AS.
Designation of previously recognised Financial lnstruments
lnd AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVoCI on the basis of facts and circumstances at
the date oftransition to lnd AS.

lnd AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured at amortised cost if it meets two tests that deal with the nature of the
business that holds the assets and the nature of the cash flows arising on those assets. A first-time adopter must assess
whether a financial asset meets the conditions on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to
lnd AS Para B8-B8C lnd AS 101 also contains mandatory exception related to classification of financial asset which states that
conditions for classifying financial assets to be tested on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition
to lnd AS instead of the date on which it becomes party to the contract.

Mandatory exceptions
a) Estimates:
The estimates at 1st April, 2018 and at 31st March, 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with
lndian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from the following items where
application of lndian GAAP did not require estimation:

lmpairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model
Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FWpL
Determination of discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost
lnvestment in equity instruments carried at FVOCI and FWpL

b) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
lnd AS 101 requires an entlty to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date oftransition to lnd AS.

Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair value - recurring Fair Value Measurements

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 As at lst April, 2018
Level 1 level 3 Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3

Finonciol Assets

lnvestment in

Equity
3,64,08,29,501 5,29,61",306 3,92,20,86,645 7,31",22,300 3,45,1"2,12,730 7,31,,80,154
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERC]AL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year Ended 3lst March, 2020

c) Statement of Cash Flows
The transition from lndian GAAP to lnd AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.
d) Other Comprehensive lncome
Under lndian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCl)separately. Hence, it has reconciled

lndian GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per lnd AS. Further, lndian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive
income as per lnd AS.

e) lnvestments
Under the Indian GAAP, investments in mutual funds were classified as current investments based on the intended holding
period and realisability. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under lnd AS, these investments are
required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. The resulting fair value changes of these investments has to be
recognised in retained earnings as at the date oftransition and subsequently in the statement of profit and loss for the year
ended 31st March,2019.

Under lndian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in unquoted and quoted equity shares as investment
measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments. Under lnd AS, the Company
has designated the investments in unquoted equity shares as FVOCI investments. lnd AS requires FVOCI investments to be

measured at fair value. At the date of transition to lnd AS, difference between the instruments fair value and lndian GAAp
carrying amount has been recognised as a separate component ofequity, in the FVOCI reserve.
f) Deferred Tax
lndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the statement of profit and loss approach, which focuses on differences
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period.

Notes to lnd As Adjustments:
i) Fair Valuation of lnvestments
As required under lnd AS 32, investments are measured at fair value.
EquitylnvestmentshavebeendesignatedasfairvaluethroughoCl Accordingly,thefairvaluechangeswithrespecttosuch
investments have been recognised in oCl -'Equity lnvestments at FVoCI'and subsequently in other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31st March, 2019.
lnvestmentsinPreferenceShare havebeendesignateasfairvaluethroughoCl Accordingly,thefairvaluechangeswith
respect to such investments have been recognised in OCI -'Financial lnvestments at FVOCI'and subsequently in other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2019.
other investments have been measured through profit or loss, fair value change is recognised in profit or loss.

ii) Deferred Tax
The various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. lnd AS adoption has no impact on the deferred
tax as compared with the previous GAAp.

iii) Statement of Cash Flows
The lnd AS adjustments are either non cash adjustments or are regrouping among the cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities. Consequently, lnd AS adoption has no impact on the net cash flow forthe year ended 3Lst March, 2019 as
compared with the previous GAAp.

NOTE 30. Reconciliation

Particulars As at lst
April,2018

0t(ar Equity (Shareholders' Funds) under previous GAAP

/add:- Fair Valuation of
Quoted Equity Shares

Quoted Preference shares

Unquoted lnvestment
MutualFund

Total Adjustment to Equity

)fiar Equity under tnd AS

23,78,38,935

3,26,7L,1O,194

2,602
5,72,96,364

5,7r,O22
3,32,49,80,182

3,56,28,!9,777
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY t!MITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

NOTE 31:-
Due to outbreak of COVID 1.9 globally and in lndia, the Company's management has made initial assessment of likely adverse
impact on business and financial risks, and believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does
not see any medium to long term risks in the Company's ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liabilities as and
when they fall due.
Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developmen.ts to identify significant uncertainties
relating to revenue in future periods.

NOTE 32:-

The previous year figures are reclassified where considered necessary to confirm to this year's classification.

NOTE 33:-

Particulars required under Paragraph 18 of the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company- Non- Sytemically lmportant
Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in the Annexure appended hereto.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.
For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyay
Portner

Membership No. 017483

Place : Kolkata

Date :10th )uly ,2O2O

J.P. Mundra
Director

DIN:- 00630475

Ashish Kedia

Monoger and CFO

T.K. Bhattacharya

Director
DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Compony secretory

lPa rticulars As at 31st March,
2019

[i fi"1i'Equlty (shareholders' Funds) under previous GAAp
lnd AS adjustment os on 1st April, 20L8
Add:- Fair Valuation of

Quoted Equity Shares

Quoted Preference sha res

Unquoted lnvestment
MutualFund

lnd AS adjustment for the year ended 31st March, 2079
Add:- Fair Valuation of
Equity lnstruments through OCI

Financial lnstruments through OCI

Total Adjustment to Equity
Add:-Profit/(Loss) for the Year (tnd AS)

f)ff,er fquity under lnd AS

23,79,39,935

3,26,11,,1O,194

2,602

5,12,96,364

5,7L,022

3,32,49,80,182

48,36,82,0O3

4,O1,,294

48,4O,83,297

1,10,85,57L

4,O5,19,87,985
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITET)
ANNT]XI-iRE

(Referred to in Note 33 of the Financial Statements)

S(lHEDtrLE TO TIIE B,{LANCE SHEUI O}- A NON-Dtll'OsI'l"l'AKIN(; 
^*ON-I},{NtitNG 

F-tN,{NCIAl. COiVIpANy

(lts in Lakhs)
PAR'I'I(IUI,ARS As on J1.0J.2020

Liabilities sidc:

(l) Loans and atlvances availed by the NIIFCs Antoutll Arnourrt
inclusivr of intcrcst accrucd thcrron hut not paid: Outstandinu Ovcrclue

(a) I)cbentures; Sccured NIL Nll.
:Ljnsecured NIL NIL
(other than lirlling u,irhin thc
nreaning ot' public deposits)

(b) Det'crred C'redits NII_ NII_
(c) Tcrrn Loans NIL NIL
(d) Intcr-cotporilte loans and ltorrourng NIL NIt.
(e) (lonrnrercial Paper NII_ NIL
(l) Other I-oans- NII_ Nlt.

,{ssets sidr:

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advanccs including bills reccivables
Iothcr than those included in (.1) belorv]:
(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured
NIL NIL
IOO NIL

(3) Brcak up of Leasrd Assets and stock
on hire and othcr assets

counting towards AFC activitics
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Firrancial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire irrcluding hire charges under. sundrl, dsbl6rg
(a) Assel.s on hrre

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans counting tor.vards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

NII-
NII,

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

l+l tsIcaI{-uD t)l tnvestlncltts:
Current Irrvestrnents:

L Qrroted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equiry NIL

(b) Pref'erence NII_
(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units ol'rnurual llnds NII_
(iv) Governnrent Sccurilies NIt.
(v) Others lplease specif,) NII_

2. fTnquoted:
(r) Shares: (a) Equiry NII_

(b) Pref'crence NIt.
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(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

Long Tcrm investments:
L Quoted:

(i) Share: (a) Equity
(b) Prpference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specifo)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

(5) Borrower grouFwise classification of assets financed
as in (2) and (3) above :

(6) lnvrstor group-tvise classifiration of all
inYestnronts in sharcs and seruritics

NIL
366.6t
NIL
NIL

36408.30

r05,68
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

529.61

138.44

200.00

NIL
NIL
NIL

and

Market Va[te /
Break upi

or NAV

Book Vah"re

(Net of l)rovisions

Sccurcd l]nsrcured 'l-otal

l. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Cornpanies in the sarne group
(c) Other related parties

NIL,

NIL
NIL

NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL

Other than related parties N
Total I 00.00 I 00.00

) Conrpanres in the sanre group
NII-
NII,
NIT,c) Other related parties
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(7) Othcr inlirrmation
Partrcul ars

(i)

( ii)

(iii)

Gross Non-Pertbrnti ng Assets

(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

Net Non-Perfbrnring Assets

(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

Assets acquired in satislactron ofdebt

Nlt.
NII-

NIt-
NII-

NII-

As pcr our Report ofcven date attachcd herervith.
For I). K. (lhhaier & (lo.
Ohurtered AccounIanIs

Firrtt Regrstrrtirrn Nrr. -i()4 liSE

Tapan Kumar Mukhopadhyal,
Pq rlne r
Membership No. 0l74ll3

Place : Kolkata
Date : IOth July,2020

LP. Mundra

Dircctor

DIN:- 00630475

Ashish Kedia

Manoger ond CFO

T.K.Bhattacharya

Directot

DIN:- 00711655

G.S Mohta

Compony secretory
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